# Unconventional Superconductivity arising from Multipolar Kondo interactions

Adarsh S. Patri and Yong Baek Kim\*

Department of Physics and Centre for Quantum Materials, University of Toronto, Toronto, Ontario M5S 1A7, Canada

\* ybkim@physics.utoronto.ca

## Abstract

The nature of unconventional superconductivity is intimately linked to the microscopic nature of the pairing interactions. In this work, motivated by cubic heavy fermion compounds with embedded multipolar moments, we theoretically investigate superconducting instabilities instigated by multipolar Kondo interactions. Employing multipolar fluctuations (mediated by RKKY interaction) coupled to conduction electrons via two-channel Kondo and novel multipolar Kondo interactions, we uncover a variety of superconducting states characterized by higher-angular momentum Cooper pairs, J = 0, 1, 2, 3. We demonstrate that both odd and even parity pairing functions are possible, regardless of the total angular momentum of the Cooper pairs, which can be traced back to the atypical nature of the multipolar Kondo interaction that intertwines conduction electron spin and orbital degrees of freedom. We determine that different (point-group) irrep classified pairing functions may coexist with each other, with some of them characterized by gapped and point node structures in their corresponding quasiparticle spectra. This work lays the foundation for discovery and classification of superconducting states in rare-earth metallic compounds with multipolar local moments.

😇 🕛 Copyright A. S. Patri and Y. B. Kim	Received 27-04-2021	
This work is licensed under the Creative Commons	Accepted 23-12-2021	
Attribution 4.0 International License.	Published 09-02-2022	updates
Published by the SciPost Foundation.	doi:10.21468/SciPostPhys.12.	2.057

## Contents

1	Introduction	2		
2	2 Ginzburg-Landau theory of multipolar ordering			
3	3 Electron-electron interactions from multipolar Kondo effects			
4	4 Higher-angular momentum Cooper Pairs			
5	Superconducting instabilities from multipolar Kondo interactions	8		
	5.1 Two-channel Kondo interaction derived pairing instabilities	8		
	5.2 Novel Kondo interaction derived pairing instabilities	9		
6	Properties of Superconducting States	9		

7	Conclusion	11	
A	Symmetry transformations of multipolar moments		
B	3 Multipolar Kondo interaction		
С	Effective electron-electron interaction from multipolar Kondo interaction	14	
D	Symmetry decomposition of total angular momentum Cooper pair states	15	
E	<b>Cooper pair composition from</b> $j = \frac{1}{2}, \frac{3}{2}$ <b>sectors of conduction electrons</b> 10		
F	Two-channel Kondo interaction derived pairing interactions	20	
G	<b>Novel Kondo interaction derived pairing interactions</b> G.1 Cooper pairs formed separately within $j = 1/2$ and $j = 3/2$ sectors G.2 Cooper pairs formed from $j = 1/2$ and $j = 3/2$ sectors	<b>21</b> 21 22	
H	BCS Mean field Theory Gap equation	23	
Ι	Momentum space distribution of superconducting states	26	
Re	References		

## 1 Introduction

The instability of the Fermi liquid state to interactions is at the heart of a wealth of emergent phenomena. Of particular interest is the superconducting transition, wherein an attractive potential leads to the formation of bound electron pair states. The subsequent macroscopic condensation of these Cooper pairs and mass generation for the gauge fields through the Anderson-Higgs mechanism, leads to the eponymous perfect conductivity and expulsion of magnetic fields. In BCS superconductivity, the pairing of opposite spin electrons by phonon-mediated interactions leads to a superconducting ground state characterized by an isotropic (in momentum space) pairing function and a gapped quasiparticle excitation spectrum.

However, the discovery of superconductivity in a variety of strongly-correlated systems – including cuprates [1], heavy fermions [2–15], transition metal oxides [16–23], organic [24–26] and U-based ferromagnetic [27–30] superconductors – has challenged this conventional wisdom. Appropriately named as unconventional superconductors, they have broadly been characterized by anisotropic condensate wavefunctions, odd/even under spatial parity and timereversal, as well as possessing gapless (nodal) structures in the quasiparticle spectrum [31,32]. Understanding their microscopic origins led to decades of active research, which has given rise to a number of proposed mechanisms that go beyond the phonon-mediated description of conventional superconductors. For instance, magnetic/spin fluctuations have been attributed to the origin of the odd-parity superconductivity in heavy fermion UPt<sub>3</sub> [33] and the *d*-wave superconductor UPd<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>3</sub> [34–36], while orbital fluctuations have been suggested as the cause in the iron-pnictides [37]. The evidently intimate link between the nature of the superconducting state and the interaction that instigates its formation leads one to question if novel superconducting instabilities may occur from novel interactions.

The investigation of rare-earth metallic compounds provides an ideal avenue to explore this question. Through the combination of spin-orbit coupling and crystalline electric fields, the localized rare-earth ions support anisotropic charge and magnetization densities, described by higher-rank multipolar moments [38-41]. As a consequence of their non-trivial transformations under lattice symmetries, conduction electrons may interact with them in atypical manners. For instance, in the single-impurity limit, so-called multipolar Kondo interactions lead to the development of both multi-channel as well as exotic non-Fermi liquid states, where both the conduction electron spin and orbital degrees of freedom become intertwined under scattering events with the moment [42-45]. In the generalized lattice setting, this Kondo effect competes with RKKY interactions between the moments leading to a rich phase diagram of exotic phenomena including hidden multipolar-ordered phases [46-50, 50-53], emergent non-Fermi liquids [54-56], and unconventional superconductivity [57-61] in the neighbourhood of a putative quantum critical point [62,63]. In ferro-quadrupolar PrTi<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>20</sub>, for example, thermodynamic and transport measurements indicate the existence of a broad superconducting dome coexisting with ferro-quadrupolar ordering under hydrostatic pressure [64]. Indeed, the  $T_c$  is enhanced near the critical point suggesting that multipolar/orbital fluctuations of the local moments play a crucial role in the pairing mechanism. Since the interactions between the moments and electrons may themselves be unusual, this provides the tantalizing prospect of the development of exotic unconventional superconducting behaviours.

In this work, motivated by superconducting behaviours in ferro-quadrupolar  $PrTi_2Al_{20}$  [64], we investigate the superconducting instability instigated by multipolar Kondo interactions. Employing a Ginzburg-Landau theory of ferro-multipolar ordering (mediated by RKKY interaction), we consider Gaussian multipolar fluctuations in the high-symmetry paramagnetic phase. These fluctuations (and the associated order parameters) are symmetry-permitting and coupled to conduction electrons possessing spin  $(\uparrow,\downarrow)$  and orbital ( $\ell = 1$ ) degrees of freedom. Due to the nature of the Kondo coupling, the electrons' decoupled spin and orbitals are interwoven to form effective  $j = \frac{1}{2}, \frac{3}{2}$  conduction electrons. The multipolar Kondo interaction used in this work was recently shown to result in both two-channel and novel non-Fermi liquid behaviours in the single-impurity limit; as such, we consider these two limiting Kondo interactions, and employing group theoretical methods, we derive the superconducting interaction wherein the Cooper pair channels are organized into the ( $O_h$ ) cubic symmetry irreps,  $A_{1g}, A_{2g}, T_{1g}, T_{2g}$ , which involve combinations of the total angular momentum of the Cooper pairs, J = 0, 1, 2, 3; for brevity we drop the gerade subscript henceforth.

The pairing functions arising from the two-channel Kondo interaction, have even/odd spatial parity that follows from their even/odd J. Intriguingly, from the novel Kondo interaction, both even/odd parity channels are possible regardless of the Cooper pair's total angular momentum. This is a marked difference from conventional BCS and highlights the exotic nature introduced from the novel Kondo interaction. Using mean-field theory, we examine the corresponding quasiparticle spectra and discover either point nodes along the various cubic axes [100], [110] and [111], or a fully gapped spectrum on the Fermi surface (with a momentum space dependence acquired from the pairing potential) depending on the superconducting irrep of interest. This work lays the foundation for the discovery of unusual forms of superconductivity in multipolar based heavy fermion compounds.

The rest of the paper is organized as follows. In Sec. 2 we present a Ginzburg-Landau theory of multipolar fluctuations based on the symmetry-constraining environment surrounding the multipolar moments. In Sec. 3 we consider the multipolar Kondo coupling of conduction electrons (of total angular momentum  $j = \frac{1}{2}, \frac{3}{2}$ ) to ferro-multipolar order parameters. The Gaussian multipolar fluctuations are then integrated out to obtain effective electron-electron interactions that can instigate superconducting instabilities. Section 4 organizes the subsequent pairing Hamiltonian (composed of Cooper pair operators of total angular momentum  $J \in [0,3]$ ) into the irreducible representations of the  $O_h$  point group. In Sec. 5 we consider the variety of superconducting order parameters arising from two-channel and novel multipolar Kondo interactions, and discuss the variety of different pairing irreps. Section 6 details the properties of the non-trivial superconducting states (including the nodal structure of the quasiparticle spectra) using a mean-field theory approach. Lastly, in Sec. 7 we discuss the key findings from this study and provide directions of future work.

### 2 Ginzburg-Landau theory of multipolar ordering

Localized multipolar moments arise from a combination of spin-orbit coupling and crystalline electric field (CEF) effects. As a representative example, we consider the family of cubic multipolar compounds,  $Pr(Ti,V)_2Al_{20}$ , where the Pr ions reside on a two-sublattice diamond lattice. Encircling each Pr ion is a cage of Al-atoms that subjects the  $4f^2$  electrons to a local  $T_d$  symmetry, which splits the J = 4 multiplet to yield a low-lying non-Kramers doublet of ground states,  $|\Gamma_3^{1,2}\rangle$ . These states support solely higher-rank multipolar moments, namely time-reversal even quadrupolar moments  $\hat{\mathcal{O}}_{20} = \frac{1}{2}(3J_z^2 - J^2)$ ,  $\hat{\mathcal{O}}_{22} = \frac{\sqrt{3}}{2}(J_x^2 - J_y^2)$ , and a time-reversal odd octupolar moment  $\hat{\mathcal{T}}_{xyz} = \frac{\sqrt{15}}{6}\overline{J_xJ_yJ_z}$  [41]. The two-fold nature of the ground state permits a tidy representation of the multipolar moments in terms of pseudospin-1/2 operators  $\mathbf{S} = (S^x, S^y, S^z)$ ,

$$S_{A,B}^{x} \sim \hat{\mathcal{O}}_{22}, \qquad S_{A,B}^{y} \sim \hat{\mathcal{O}}_{20}, \qquad S_{A,B}^{z} \sim \hat{\mathcal{T}}_{xyz}.$$
 (1)

Due to the sublattice nature of the underlying diamond structure, the local moments are also specified by their sublattice (A,B) location.

Conduction electron mediating RKKY-like interactions permit the development of spontaneous ferro- and antiferro- multipolar orderings. In this work, we focus on the possible development of ferro-like order of both quadrupolar and octupolar moments described by the coarse-grained Landau order parameters [65],

$$\phi_{x,y,z}(\mathbf{r}) = \langle S_A^{x,y,z}(\mathbf{r}) \rangle + \langle S_B^{x,y,z}(\mathbf{r}) \rangle, \qquad (2)$$

where **r** denotes the coarse-grained spatial coordinate. We note that in the subsequent pathintegral formulation,  $\phi_{x,y,z}$  are bosonic field variables.

Constrained by the surrounding  $T_d$  point group of each moment, time-reversal symmetry, and spatial inversion about bond-centre (detailed in Appendix A), we have the following Euclidean time static Ginzburg-Landau action for the multipolar moments,

$$S_0 = \int_{\tau} \sum_{\mathbf{q}} \sum_{\mu\nu} \phi_{\mu}(-\mathbf{q}) \mathcal{M}_{\mu\nu}(\mathbf{q}) \phi_{\nu}(\mathbf{q}), \qquad (3)$$

where we employ the Fourier modes of the order parameters,  $\int_{\tau} = \int_{0}^{\beta} d\tau$ ,  $\mathcal{M}_{xx}(\mathbf{q}) = (m_{\mathcal{Q}} + a_0\mathbf{q}^2 + a_2q_{\nu}^2)$ ,  $\mathcal{M}_{yy}(\mathbf{q}) = (m_{\mathcal{Q}} + a_0\mathbf{q}^2 - a_2q_{\nu}^2)$ ,  $\mathcal{M}_{zz}(\mathbf{q}) = (m_{\mathcal{O}} + a_1\mathbf{q}^2)$ ,  $\mathcal{M}_{xy}(\mathbf{q}) = \mathcal{M}_{yx}(\mathbf{q}) = (a_2q_{\mu}^2)$ . We employ the cubic  $E_g$  normal modes  $q_{\nu}^2 \equiv \frac{1}{2}(2q_z^2 - q_x^2 - q_{\nu}^2)$  and  $q_{\mu}^2 \equiv \frac{\sqrt{3}}{2}(q_x^2 - q_y^2)$ , phenomenological constants  $m_{\mathcal{Q},\mathcal{O}}$  represent the mass terms for the quadrupolar and octupolar degrees of freedom, and  $a_{0,1,2} > 0$  express the stiffness associated with spatial fluctuations of the order parameters. We retain only the quadratic fluctuations of the order parameters under an implicit Gaussian approximation that only weak fluctuations are important for the superconducting instability in the approach from the paramagnetic phase  $(m_{\mathcal{Q},\mathcal{O}} > 0)$ .

### 3 Electron-electron interactions from multipolar Kondo effects

The nature of the interaction between the multipolar moments and conduction electrons, and the subsequent many-body ground state, is strongly dependent on the available conduction electron spin and orbitals [42–45]. As a representative example, we consider conduction electrons, characterized by orbital  $p_{x,y,z}$  (l = 1) and spin–1/2 degrees of freedom, forming a Fermi surface well localized about the high-symmetry zone-centre of the Brillouin zone [66,67]. The electrons are degenerate in both orbital and spin space, where the orbital degeneracy in the p orbitals satisfies the cubic ( $O_h$ ) symmetry of the high-symmetry zone-centre and the spin degeneracy is guaranteed by time-reversal symmetry. The free fermion action is given by,

$$S_{c} = \int_{\tau} \sum_{\mathbf{k}} \overline{c}_{\mathbf{k}\mu} \Big[ \left( \partial_{\tau} + \epsilon_{\mathbf{k}} \right) \delta_{\mu\nu} \Big] c_{\mathbf{k}\nu}, \qquad (4)$$

where  $\mu$ ,  $\nu$  run over the six flavours of fermions (Appendix B details the conduction basis used) which have a degenerate dispersion  $\epsilon_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{\mathbf{k}^2}{2m} - \mu_F$ . Though the isolated conduction electrons do not necessarily possess intrinsic spin-orbit

Though the isolated conduction electrons do not necessarily possess intrinsic spin-orbit coupling, the interaction with multipolar Kondo moments necessitates the intertwining of the orbital and spin degrees of freedom,

$$S_{K} = \int_{\tau} \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{q}} \left[ \overline{c}_{\mathbf{k}+\mathbf{q},\mu} \Big[ \Gamma_{\mu\nu}^{x} \phi_{x}(\mathbf{q}) + \Gamma_{\mu\nu}^{y} \phi_{y}(\mathbf{q}) + \Gamma_{\mu\nu}^{z} \phi_{z}(\mathbf{q}) \Big] c_{\mathbf{k},\nu} + (\mathbf{q} \leftrightarrow -\mathbf{q}) \Big], \tag{5}$$

where we detail the form of the interaction vertices  $\Gamma^{x,y,z}$  in Appendix B; it suffices to state here that the Kondo interaction vertices involve three coupling constants  $J_{1,2,3}$ . The natural basis for the conduction electrons in Eq. 5 is in terms of the total angular momentum  $j = \ell \otimes s = 1 \otimes \frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{2}, \frac{3}{2}$ . In the single impurity limit, this multipolar Kondo interaction permits the development of (i) a two-channel non-Fermi liquid behaviour (characterized by  $J_2 = 0$ ), and (ii) a novel non-Fermi liquid behaviour ( $J_1 = 0$ ) at low temperatures [44].

The Gaussian nature of the multipolar order parameters permits them to be integrated out (as described in Appendix C) of the path integral to yield an effective action,

$$Z = \int \mathcal{D}[\overline{c}, c; \overline{\phi}, \phi] e^{-(S_0 + S_c + S_K)} = \int \mathcal{D}[\overline{c}, c] e^{-S_c} e^{-S_{\text{eff}}}.$$
 (6)

In order to study the superconducting instabilities instigated by  $S_{\text{eff}} = \int_{\tau} H_{\text{eff}}$ , we rewrite it in terms of pairing channel terms by (i) normal ordering the interaction and (ii) projecting the interactions to ensure Cooper pairs are formed from electrons of opposite momenta (in the renormalization group sense, any other possible pairs yield irrelevant interaction vertices [68]). The effective superconducting Hamiltonian is,

$$H_{\rm eff} = -\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \sum_{\alpha\beta\gamma\delta} (\mathcal{V}_{\alpha\beta\gamma\delta})_{\mathbf{k}-\mathbf{k}'} c^{\dagger}_{\mathbf{k},\alpha} c^{\dagger}_{-\mathbf{k},\gamma} c_{-\mathbf{k}',\delta} c_{\mathbf{k}',\beta} , \qquad (7)$$

where the complete form of the interaction potential  $(\mathcal{V}_{\alpha\beta\gamma\delta})_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}$ , involving bi-quadratic products of the interaction vertices  $\Gamma^{x,y,z}$  and momentum dependent form factors, is presented in Appendix C. We note that the interaction potential is composed of rational functions in momentum  $\mathbf{k}, \mathbf{k}'$ , which introduces a challenge when attempting to separate it into a product of a function solely dependent on  $\mathbf{k}$  and a function solely dependent on  $\mathbf{k}'$ ; this difficulty encourages us to retain this momentum dependence  $\mathbf{k}, \mathbf{k}'$  in the interaction/vertex function when numerically solving the gap equations. The abundance of possible terms in Eq. 7 encourages a careful examination of two limiting cases of the effective electron-electron interaction generated from (i) two-channel Kondo interaction, and (ii) novel multipolar Kondo interaction, which we do so in the subsequent sections.

### 4 Higher-angular momentum Cooper Pairs

The nature of the effective interaction permits superconducting instabilities of electrons belonging solely in the j = 1/2 sector, solely in the j = 3/2 sector, and a mixture of the two jsectors. This leads to the development of Cooper pairs of total angular momentum J,

$$\frac{1}{2} \otimes \frac{1}{2} \to 0 \oplus 1, \tag{8}$$

$$\frac{3}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2} \to 0 \oplus 1 \oplus 2 \oplus 3, \tag{9}$$

$$\frac{1}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2} \to 1 \oplus 2, \tag{10}$$

which follows from standard angular momentum addition. This higher-angular momentum nature of the Cooper pair is unlike the standard singlet state of BCS theory. We note that the conduction electrons created here possess only the total angular momentum (or "effective spin") *j* and no additional orbital angular momentum.

Formally, the angular momentum sector of a generic form of a Cooper pair creation operator with momentum  $\mathbf{k}$  can be decomposed into the total angular momentum states [69],

$$c_{\mathbf{k};j_{1}}^{\dagger}c_{-\mathbf{k};j_{2}}^{\dagger} = \sum_{J,M} \langle j_{1}, m_{1}; j_{2}, m_{2} | j_{1}, j_{2}; J, M \rangle b_{J,M;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger},$$
(11)

where  $j_{1,2}$  and  $m_{1,2}$  are the effective spin and *z*-direction component of each electron ( $m_{1,2}$  subscripts for the conduction electron operators are dropped for brevity), and  $b_{J,M;k}^{\dagger}$  is a Cooper pair creation operator of total effective spin *J* and *M* component along the *z*-direction at momentum ±**k**.  $\langle j_1, m_1; j_2, m_2 | j_1, j_2; J, J_z \rangle$  are the Clebsch-Gordon (CG) coefficients, which takes into account the symmetric/anti-symmetric property of effective spin exchange via the phase factor i.e.  $\langle j_1, m_1; j_2, m_2 | j_1, j_2; J, M \rangle = (-1)^{J-j_1-j_2} \langle j_2, m_2; j_1, m_1 | j_2, j_1; J, M \rangle$ .

Due to the electrons possessing both j and  $\mathbf{k}$  quantum numbers, fermionic exchange involves the composition of spin exchange  $(j_1 \leftrightarrow j_2)$  and spatial parity  $(\mathbf{k} \rightarrow -\mathbf{k})$ . For  $j_1 = j_2$ , the associated Cooper pair operator must be even (odd) under spatial parity if J is even (odd) to satisfy Fermi-Dirac statistics; this can verily be identified from Eq. 11 using the aforementioned CG phase factor and the anticommutation of fermionic operators. For  $j_1 \neq j_2$ , special care needs to be taken to establish the spatial parity nature of the pairing operator, as one can define a Cooper pair creation operator in two ways:  $b_{J,M,\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}(\tilde{b}_{J,M,\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger})$  with  $j = \frac{3}{2}$  ( $j = \frac{1}{2}$ ) fermion at  $\mathbf{k}$  and  $j = \frac{1}{2}$  ( $j = \frac{3}{2}$ ) fermion in the  $-\mathbf{k}$  in Eq. 11. These Cooper pair operators are related to each other by the CG phase factor under exchange of  $j_1$  and  $j_2$ . In order to create a Cooper pair of definite parity, one should thus consider linear combinations ( $\pm$ ) of the Cooper pair operator in Eq. 11,

$$b_{J,M;\mathbf{k};\pm}^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left( b_{J,M;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \pm \tilde{b}_{J,M;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \right), \qquad (12)$$

where due to satisfying Fermi-Dirac statistics,  $\tilde{b}_{J,M;-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} = (-1)^{J+1} b_{J,M;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}$ . Thus,  $b_{J,M;\mathbf{k};+}^{\dagger}$  $(b_{J,M;\mathbf{k};-}^{\dagger})$  is odd (even) under spatial parity for even *J*; and  $b_{J,M;\mathbf{k};+}^{\dagger}$   $(b_{J,M;\mathbf{k};-}^{\dagger})$  is even (odd) under spatial parity for odd *J*.

The cubic nature of the interactions necessitates that the Cooper pair operators of total angular momentum  $b_{J,M;k}^{\dagger}$  be organized into the irreducible representations of the associated point-group  $O_h$ , rather than the good quantum number of spherical symmetry, J [70–72]. The group theoretical decomposition of Cooper pair states are: for  $J = 0 \rightarrow A_1$ ,

$$|A_1\rangle = |0,0\rangle , \qquad (13)$$

for  $J = 1 \rightarrow T_1$ ,

$$|T_{1^{(1)}}\rangle = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \Big[ |1,1\rangle - |1,-1\rangle \Big],$$
 (14)

$$|T_{1^{(2)}}\rangle = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \Big[ |1,1\rangle + |1,-1\rangle \Big],$$
 (15)

$$|T_{1^{(3)}}\rangle = |1,0\rangle$$
, (16)

for  $J = 2 \rightarrow E \oplus T_2$ ,

$$|E_{(1)}\rangle = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \Big[ |2,2\rangle + |2,-2\rangle \Big],$$
 (17)

$$|E_{(2)}\rangle = |2,0\rangle , \qquad (18)$$

$$|T_{2^{(1)}}\rangle = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \Big[ |2,1\rangle + |2,-1\rangle \Big],$$
 (19)

$$|T_{2^{(2)}}\rangle = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \Big[ |2,1\rangle - |2,-1\rangle \Big],$$
 (20)

$$|T_{2^{(3)}}\rangle = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \Big[ |2,2\rangle - |2,-2\rangle \Big],$$
 (21)

and for  $J = 3 \rightarrow A_2 \oplus T_1 \oplus T_2$ ,

$$|A_2\rangle = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \Big[ |3,2\rangle - |3,-2\rangle \Big], \tag{22}$$

$$|T_{1^{(1)}}\rangle = \sqrt{\frac{5}{16}} \Big[ |3,3\rangle - \sqrt{\frac{3}{5}} |3,1\rangle + \sqrt{\frac{3}{5}} |3,-1\rangle - |3,-3\rangle \Big],$$
(23)

$$|T_{1^{(2)}}\rangle = i\sqrt{\frac{5}{16}} \Big[ |3,3\rangle + i\sqrt{\frac{3}{5}}|3,1\rangle + \sqrt{\frac{3}{5}}|3,-1\rangle + |3,-3\rangle \Big],$$
(24)

$$T_{1^{(3)}}\rangle = |3,0\rangle , \qquad (25)$$

$$|T_{2^{(1)}}\rangle = \sqrt{\frac{3}{16}} \Big[ |3,3\rangle + \sqrt{\frac{5}{3}} |3,1\rangle - \sqrt{\frac{5}{3}} |3,-1\rangle - |3,-3\rangle \Big],$$
(26)

$$|T_{2^{(2)}}\rangle = i\sqrt{\frac{3}{16}} \Big[|3,3\rangle - \sqrt{\frac{5}{3}}|3,1\rangle - i\sqrt{\frac{5}{3}}|3,-1\rangle + |3,-3\rangle\Big],$$
(27)

$$|T_{2^{(3)}}\rangle = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \Big[ |3,2\rangle + |3,-2\rangle \Big],$$
 (28)

where we use the notation of the irreps of  $O_h$  point group, and  $|J, M\rangle$  is the total angular momentum wavefunction of the Cooper pair operator  $b_{J,M;k}^{\dagger}$ . We stress that the irrep decomposition is of the total angular momentum J, rather than the linear momentum, of the Cooper pair. The above total angular momentum states are even (with the appropriate gerade subscript) under the inversion element of  $O_h$  due to being composed of orbital angular momentum  $l_1 = l_2 = 1$  electrons i.e. picks up a phase of  $(-1)^{l_1+l_2} = 1$  under the inversion [73]. We contrast this with the spatial parity that flips the linear momentum **k**. As mentioned previously, we have dropped the gerade subscript for brevity. The procedure by which the group decomposition is performed is detailed in Appendix D, and the composition of the Cooper pair in terms of individual fermionic bilinears is presented in Appendix E. We note that the cubic irrep basis functions and the corresponding Cooper pair operators are time-reversal invariant. This permits the subsequent superconducting states to be characterized as time-reversal preserving (breaking) depending on if the superconducting order parameters,  $\Delta$ , are (not) equal to their complex conjugate, up to a global phase [70], as is typical in studies of multicomponent superconductivity.



Figure 1: Superconducting order parameters arising from  $\frac{3}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2}$  electrons, with i = 1, 2, 3 denoting the components of the three-dimensional irreps, from the twochannel Kondo interaction. Coupled order parameters have an intersection between their depicted circles. The Cooper pair operators associated with the order parameters are detailed in Appendix E. The complete form of the pairing Hamiltonian is presented in Appendix F.

# 5 Superconducting instabilities from multipolar Kondo interactions

The Cooper pairs, and the associated pairing functions, are associated with definite spatial parity. In order to account for this, the interaction potential must similarly be decomposed into even and odd under spatial parity components [74],

$$(V_{\Gamma}^{\pm})_{\mathbf{k}-\mathbf{k}'} = \frac{1}{2} \Big[ (V_{\Gamma})_{\mathbf{k}-\mathbf{k}'} \pm (V_{\Gamma})_{\mathbf{k}+\mathbf{k}'} \Big],$$
(29)

where the  $\Gamma$  indicates a particular irrep of interest of definite spatial parity, and the interaction potential is inversion-symmetric  $(V_{\Gamma})_{\mathbf{k}-\mathbf{k}'} = (V_{\Gamma})_{-\mathbf{k}+\mathbf{k}'}$ . From inspection,  $(V_{\Gamma}^+)_{\mathbf{k}-\mathbf{k}'}$  and  $(V_{\Gamma}^-)_{\mathbf{k}-\mathbf{k}'}$ are respectively even and odd under spatial parity, and thus the interaction Hamiltonian will project out terms of definite parity i.e. pairing operators even (odd) under spatial parity only contain the associated  $V_{\Gamma}^+$  ( $V_{\Gamma}^-$ ) portions of the interaction potential.

### 5.1 Two-channel Kondo interaction derived pairing instabilities

The superconducting order parameters derived from the two-channel Kondo interaction involve electrons solely belonging to the  $j = \frac{3}{2}$  sector. They can divided into two families: those involving even-*J* and odd-*J* total angular momentum, which correspond to even-(odd-)*J* pairing functions under spatial parity. Since the interaction potential is functionally dependent on momentum space, this permits certain Cooper pairs of different cubic irreps to scatter off each other. For the even-*J* sector,  $A_1^{J=0}$  and  $\vec{T}_2^{J=2}$  are decoupled from the rest, while the two components of the two-dimensional  $\vec{E}_2^{J=2}$  irrep are numerically found to be non-vanishing. For the odd-*J* sector, the variety of realized irreps is more prominent as though the  $A_2^{J=3}$  sector is decoupled from the rest, the  $\vec{T}_1^{J=1}$  and  $\vec{T}_1^{J=3}$  irreps form two linear combinations out of which one of the linear combination (for each component of the three dimensional irrep  $T_1$ ) couples to a component of  $\vec{T}_2^{J=3}$ . The complete form of the Hamiltonian is presented in Appendix F. We present a schematic depicting the decoupling for the even and odd-*J* channels, and subsequent variety of the irreps in Fig. 1.



Figure 2: Superconducting order parameters arising from  $\frac{3}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2}$  and  $\frac{1}{2} \otimes \frac{1}{2}$  electrons, with i = 1, 2, 3 denoting the components of the three-dimensional irreps, from the novel fixed point Kondo interaction. Coupled order parameters have an intersection between their depicted circles. The Cooper pair operators associated with the order parameters are detailed in Appendix E. The complete form of the pairing Hamiltonian is presented in Appendix G.

#### 5.2 Novel Kondo interaction derived pairing instabilities

The superconducting order parameters derived from the novel Kondo interaction involve electrons belonging to the  $j = \frac{1}{2}$  and  $j = \frac{3}{2}$  sectors. This offers a novel avenue of diversity of superconductivity as Cooper pairs may be (i) formed from within each sector separately and scatter off pairs in the other sector, and (ii) may be composed of one fermion from  $j = \frac{1}{2}$  and the other from  $j = \frac{3}{2}$  sector. The classification of even/odd spatial parity Cooper pairs for scenario (i) follows the previous approach, namely it is identified with the even/odd *J* nature of the Cooper pair. As detailed in Sec. 4, the parity identification for scenario (ii) is not as simple, and one has both even and odd parity pairings regardless of the even/odd-ness of *J*. This is a clear distinction from the instabilities arising from the two-channel Kondo interaction. We depict the variety of the various pairing channels for scenario (i) and (ii) in Figs. 2 and 3, respectively. As seen in Fig. 2, though the components of the Cooper pairs formed within the  $j = \frac{3}{2}$  sector provides a common source to scatter the decoupled channels amongst themselves. For the scenario (ii) in Fig. 3, even and odd *J* Cooper pairs are permitted to scatter off each other, since even/odd *J* no longer corresponds to even/odd spatial parity pairing functions.

### 6 Properties of Superconducting States

The characterization of the superconducting channels in terms of even/odd parity cubic irreps permits a BCS-mean field theory to be developed to study the properties of the superconducting state. Employing a Hubbard–Stratonovich (HS) transformation (as detailed in Appendix H) we obtain gap equations of the form,

$$\Delta_{\mathbf{p}\alpha} = \sum_{\mathbf{q}} \sum_{\gamma} (\Omega_{\mathbf{p}\mathbf{q}})_{\alpha\gamma} \sum_{i=1,\dots,m} \frac{\tanh(\beta E_{m\mathbf{q}}/2)}{E_{m\mathbf{q}}} \frac{\partial E_{i\mathbf{q}}^2}{\partial \overline{\Delta}_{\mathbf{q}\gamma}}, \qquad (30)$$

where  $E_{mq}$  is the Bogoliubov quasiparticle dispersion of the  $m^{\text{th}}$  quasiparticle,  $(\Omega_{pq})_{\alpha\gamma}$  is a collection of interaction potentials associated with a decoupled irrep (or collection of irreps



Figure 3: Superconducting order parameters arising from  $\frac{1}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2}$  electrons, with i = 1, 2, 3 denoting the components of the three-dimensional irreps, from the novel fixed point Kondo interaction. Coupled order parameters have an intersection between their depicted circles. The Cooper pair operators associated with the order parameters are detailed in Appendix E. The complete form of the pairing Hamiltonian is presented in Appendix G.

that is decoupled from the rest), and  $\beta = 1/T$ . In the case of a unique (m = 1) quasiparticle dispersion, as is for the decoupled pairing channel in  $\frac{3}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2}$  and the pairings from case of (ii) of the novel interaction, there is an additional factor of the 2 on the right hand side of Eq. 30.

For choice of parameters provided in Appendix H, we obtain non-trivial gap solutions for particular irreps. Indeed, solving the coupled BCS gap equations (Eq. 30) yields multiple non-vanishing order parameter solutions in some cases. We present a summary table for the various non-vanishing order parameters in Table 1 and 2 for the two-channel Kondo interaction and the novel multipolar Kondo interaction, respectively. As seen, for the choice of parameters, not all order parameters are realized, and in some cases multiple irrep solutions are found. In Appendix I, we present the **k**-space distribution of the realized order parameters.

The nature of the superconducting state and the accompanying Bogoliubov quasiparticle dispersion is intimately linked to the composition of the Cooper pairs from the fermionic *j* sectors. For Cooper pairs formed from  $j = \frac{3}{2}$  or  $j = \frac{1}{2}$  sector, the realized even-parity order parameters have gapped quasiparticle dispersion, though with a momentum space dependence that follows from the momentum distribution of the interaction potential. This property ap-

Table 1: Non-vanishing superconducting states resulting from electron-electron interactions induced by two-channel Kondo coupling. G.D. = Gapped dispersion with acquired k dependence from pairing potential. The corresponding order parameters are provided in Fig. 1.

Spatial Parity	Δ	Superconducting Properties
Even	$A_1^{J=0}$	G.D. Time-reversal invariant state.
Even	$E^{J=2}$	G.D. Time-reversal invariant states.
		Coexisting superconducting order parameters.
	$\begin{bmatrix} T_{2^{(1,2,3)}}^{J=3}, \\ T_{2^{(1,2,3)}}^{J=1,3}, \\ T_{+^{(1,2,3)}}^{J=1,3} \end{bmatrix}$	Gapless point nodes along body diagonals
		$[111], [\overline{1}11], [1\overline{1}1], [11\overline{1}]$ axes. Time-reversal broken states.
Odd	$T^{J=1,3}_{\_(1,2,3)}$	Gapless point nodes
		along cubic [100], [010], [001] axes. Time-reversal broken states.

Table 2: Non-vanishing superconducting states resulting from electron-electron interactions induced by novel Kondo coupling. G.D. = Gapped dispersion with acquired k dependence from pairing potential. The corresponding order parameters are provided in Figs. 2, 3.

Spatial Parity	Δ	Superconducting Properties
	$A_{1:i=1/2}^{J=0}$ ,	Coexisting superconducting order parameters.
Even	$A_{1:i=3/2}^{J=0}$ ,	G.D.
	$E_{j=3/2}^{J=2}$	Time-reversal invariant states.
Odd	$T_{1;j=1/2}^{J=1}$ ,	Coexisting superconducting order
	$T^{J=1,3}_{+;j=3/2},$	parameters. Gapless point nodes
	$T^{J=1,3}_{-:i=3/2},$	along [110], [101], [011],
	$T_{2;j=3/2}^{j=3/2}$	$[1\overline{1}0]$ , $[10\overline{1}]$ , $[01\overline{1}]$ axes. Time-reversal broken states.
Even	$E^{J=2}_{-;\frac{1}{2}\otimes\frac{3}{2}}$	G.D. Time-reversal broken states.
Odd	$T_{2+\frac{1}{2}\otimes\frac{3}{2}}^{J=2}$	Coexisting superconducting order
	$\begin{bmatrix} T_{J=1}^{J=1} \\ T_{1-;\frac{1}{2}\otimes\frac{3}{2}}^{J=1} \end{bmatrix}$	parameters. G.D. Time-reversal broken states.

plies even in the case of multiple coexisting even-parity order parameters. The odd-parity order parameters, on the other hand, acquire gapless nodes in the quasiparticle dispersion, in a manner that respects the underlying cubic symmetry. We present a schematic of the realized gapless quasiparticle nodes for the order parameters in Fig. 4. The distinction in the location of the gapless nodes provides a means to distinguish the odd-parity order parameters. Indeed, the realized superconducting states arising from electrons belonging to either  $j = \frac{3}{2}$  or  $j = \frac{1}{2}$  sector are time-reversal invariant (broken) depending on if *J* is even (odd).

For Cooper pairs formed from the combined  $j = \frac{1}{2}$ ,  $\frac{3}{2}$  sectors, gapped quasiparticle dispersions are realized for both even and odd parity order parameters. Unlike the order parameters where Cooper pairs are formed in the  $j = \frac{1}{2}$  or  $j = \frac{3}{2}$  sectors independently, odd-parity order parameters develop for even-*J* Cooper pairs. This is an important distinction of this model from standard BCS-like instabilities formed from  $j = \frac{1}{2}$  or from  $j = \frac{3}{2}$  sectors. A further intriguing aspect from the combined model is that the odd and even *J* Cooper pairs may coexist with each other. This is seen, for example, in the coexisting gaps formed from  $T_{1-;\frac{1}{2}\otimes\frac{3}{2}}^{J=1}$ , where despite being odd under spatial parity, the quasiparticle spectrum is gapped on the Fermi surface. We contrast this with the nature of the gap functions obtained for odd-parity Cooper pairs, where distinct gapless nodes are along the various depicted cubic directions in Fig. 4. Indeed, both the realized superconducting states break time-reversal regardless of the even-ness of *J*, as is seen for both the  $E_{-;\frac{1}{2}\otimes\frac{3}{2}}^{J=2}$  states, as well as for  $T_{2+;\frac{1}{2}\otimes\frac{3}{2}}^{J=2}$ ,  $T_{1-;\frac{1}{2}\otimes\frac{3}{2}}^{J=1}$  states. The origin of such unusual coexisting superconducting instabilities can be routed to the novel multipolar Kondo coupling that permitted the mixing of multi-orbital conduction electrons.

## 7 Conclusion

In this work, we examined the nature of superconducting instabilities originating from twochannel and novel multipolar Kondo interactions between multi-orbital conduction electrons and localized non-Kramers moments. Due to the multipolar nature of the localized moments, the spin and orbital of conduction electrons became intertwined, leading to pairing instabilities



Figure 4: Gapless nodes in the Bogoliubov quasiparticle dispersions for odd-parity order parameters formed by fermions belonging to j = 1/2 or j = 3/2 sectors independently. The point nodes are indicated by the blue dots, while the orange sphere is the itinerant electron Fermi surface. The red-dashed lines are for ease of viewing the gapless point nodes along the various cubic axes. (a): Gapless nodes for  $T_{\pm(1,2,3)}^{J=3}$ ,  $T_2^{J=3}$  order parameters resulting from two-channel Kondo interaction are located along body diagonal [111] directions. (b): Gapless nodes for  $T_{\pm(1,2,3)}^{J=1,3}$  order parameters resulting from two-channel Kondo interaction are located along primary cubic  $\hat{e}_i$  axes. (c): Gapless nodes for  $T_{\pm;j=3/2}^{J=1,3}$ ,  $T_{\pm;j=3/2}^{J=1,3}$ ,  $T_{2;j=3/2}^{J=3,2}$  resulting from novel Kondo interaction are located along the [1 ± 10], [10 ± 1], [01 ± 1] axes.

between effective  $j = \frac{1}{2}, \frac{3}{2}$  the conduction electrons. Using group theoretic symmetry analysis, we characterized the variety of higher-angular momentum Cooper pairs according to the irreducible representations of the  $O_h$  point group. The Cooper pairs arising from two-channel Kondo interactions are composed of electrons from the  $j = \frac{1}{2}, j = \frac{3}{2}$  sectors independently, and possess even and odd spatial parity gap functions that follow from the even and odd-ness of their corresponding total angular momentum J. Indeed, the odd-parity quasiparticles possess point-nodal structures along various cubic directions in their dispersion. Intriguingly, Cooper pairs arising from the novel Kondo interaction leads to coexisting even-J and odd-J instabilities, which have even and odd spatial parity regardless of the even/odd-ness of the Cooper pair total angular momentum.

Our studies are broadly applicable to the rare-earth family of  $Pr(Ti,V)_2Al_{20}$ ,

 $Pr(Ir,Rh)_2Zn_{20}$ , where multipolar moments are situated on diamond lattice sites with welllocalized Fermi surface formed by Al atoms. Indeed, our work may be employed as a theoretical guide to classify the superconducting instabilities occurring in the paramagnetic phase, which may be achieved via the application of hydrostatic pressure. Future directions of study would be to examine and classify the nature of the superconductivity coexisting within a multipolar ordered phase. Due to the reduced symmetry of the ordered phase, the above cubic irreps become reducible and it is natural to expect further variety of the pairing functions. Such studies would be highly relevant to observed superconductivity coexisting with quadrupolar ordered phase in  $PrTi_2Al_{20}$  [64]. Indeed, microscopic details of the conduction electrons (such as the conduction electron band structure and Fermi surface in the paramagnetic phase) would be required to make direct connections with such coexistence experiments [75]. Understanding the topological nature of the superconducting states in both the paramagnetic and multipolar ordered phases may ultimately require such microscopic information, and would be an important future study.

## Acknowledgements

We thank Nazim Boudjada for illuminating discussions.

**Funding information** This work was supported by NSERC of Canada and the Centre for Quantum Materials.

### A Symmetry transformations of multipolar moments

The phenomenological order parameters transform as their microscopic counterparts under the generating elements of the  $T_d$  point group (improper rotation  $S_{4z}$  and a  $C_3$  rotation along the [111] axis), namely [43,53]:

$$\phi_{x}(\mathbf{r}) \xrightarrow{S_{4z}} -\phi_{x}(R_{S_{4z}}^{-1}\mathbf{r}), \qquad (31)$$

$$\phi_{y}(\mathbf{r}) \xrightarrow{S_{4z}} \phi_{y}(R_{S_{4z}}^{-1}\mathbf{r}), \qquad (32)$$

$$\phi_z(\mathbf{r}) \xrightarrow{\sim} -\phi_z(R_{S_{4z}}^{-1}\mathbf{r}), \qquad (33)$$

$$\phi_{x}(\mathbf{r}) \xrightarrow{C_{31}} -\frac{1}{2} \phi_{x}(R_{C_{31}}^{-1}\mathbf{r}) + \frac{\sqrt{3}}{2} \phi_{y}(R_{C_{31}}^{-1}\mathbf{r}), \qquad (34)$$

$$\phi_{y}(\mathbf{r}) \xrightarrow{C_{31}} -\frac{\sqrt{3}}{2} \phi_{x}(R_{C_{31}}^{-1}\mathbf{r}) - \frac{1}{2} \phi_{y}(R_{C_{31}}^{-1}\mathbf{r}), \qquad (35)$$

$$\phi_z(\mathbf{r}) \xrightarrow{C_{31}} \phi_z(R_{C_{31}}^{-1}\mathbf{r}).$$
 (36)

The Fourier transform of these order parameters are given by,

$$\phi_{x,y,z}(\mathbf{q}) = \frac{1}{N} \sum_{\mathbf{r}} e^{-i\mathbf{q}\cdot\mathbf{r}} \phi_{x,y,z}(\mathbf{r}).$$
(37)

### **B** Multipolar Kondo interaction

The single-impurity model studied in Ref. [44] can be extended to a generalized coarse-grained lattice model where conduction band electrons uniformly couple to the ferro-multipolar order parameters in a manner respecting the local  $T_d$  symmetry of the moments,

$$H_{K} = 2\sum_{\mathbf{r}} \sum_{d=x,y,z} c^{\dagger}_{\mathbf{r}\mu} \Gamma^{d}_{\mu\nu} c_{\mathbf{r}\nu} \phi_{d}(\mathbf{r}), \qquad (38)$$

where

$$\Gamma^{x} = J_{1}(\lambda^{1} + \lambda^{27}) - J_{2}(\lambda^{4} - \lambda^{30}),$$

$$\Gamma^{y} = J_{1}(\lambda^{3} + \lambda^{29}) - J_{2}(\lambda^{6} - \lambda^{32}),$$

$$\Gamma^{z} = -J_{3}(\lambda^{2} + \lambda^{28}).$$
(39)

Here,  $J_1, J_2, J_3$  are the Kondo couplings to the multipolar moments, **r** denotes the coarsegrained spatial coordinate, and  $\lambda^W$  are the SU(6) Gell-Mann generators  $W = \{1, 2..., 35\}$  with normalization such that tr[ $\lambda^a \lambda^b$ ] =  $\frac{1}{2} \delta^{ab}$ . In the single impurity limit, the IR fixed points are described by (i)  $J_1 = J_3 \neq 0$ ;  $J_2 = 0$  (two-channel Kondo interaction fixed point), and (ii)  $J_2 = J_3 \neq 0$ ;  $J_3 = 0$  (novel fixed point). In terms of the coefficients studied in Ref. [44]:  $J_1 \equiv -\frac{1}{\sqrt{3}}K_1 + 2K_2$ ,  $J_2 \equiv \sqrt{\frac{2}{3}}K_1 + \sqrt{2}K_2$ , and  $J_3 \equiv \sqrt{3}K_3$ . We note that the factor of 2 in Eq. 38 is cancelled out by the factor of  $\frac{1}{2}$  introduced in Eq. 5 to include both  $\phi_{x,y,z}(\mathbf{q})$  and  $\phi_{x,y,z}(-\mathbf{q})$  coupling to the fermionic bilinears. We note that the 1/2-factor normalization of the SU(6) Gell-Mann generators is absorbed into the definition of  $J_{1,2,3}$  henceforth for simplicity. The conduction electron basis employed in Eq. 38 is,

$$\vec{c}_{\mathbf{r}}^{\top} = \left(c_{\mathbf{r};\frac{3}{2},\frac{-3}{2}} c_{\mathbf{r};\frac{3}{2},\frac{1}{2}} c_{\mathbf{r};\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2}} c_{\mathbf{r};\frac{3}{2},\frac{3}{2}} c_{\mathbf{r};\frac{3}{2},\frac{-1}{2}} c_{\mathbf{r};\frac{1}{2},\frac{-1}{2}}\right),\tag{40}$$

where the subscript  $\mathbf{r}$ ; j,  $j_z$  for the fermionic operator indicates the coarse-grained spatial coordinate, total-angular momentum j, and z-component projection of the total angular momentum  $j_z$ , respectively. The Fourier transform of the conduction electron fields is given by,

$$c_{\mathbf{r}\mu} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{N}} \sum_{\mathbf{k}} e^{i\mathbf{k}\cdot\mathbf{r}} c_{\mathbf{k}\mu} \,. \tag{41}$$

# C Effective electron-electron interaction from multipolar Kondo interaction

The total path integral (composed of conduction electron action, Kondo coupling, and multipolar fluctiations) is given by,

$$Z = \int \mathcal{D}[\overline{c}, c] \mathcal{D}[\overline{\phi}, \phi] e^{-(S_c + S_0 + S_K)}$$
  
= 
$$\int \mathcal{D}[\overline{c}, c] e^{-S_c} \mathcal{D}[\overline{\phi}, \phi] e^{-\int_{\tau, \mathbf{q}} \left[ \sum_{\mu\nu} \phi_{\mu}(-\mathbf{q}) M_{\mu\nu} \phi_{\nu}(\mathbf{q}) + \sum_{\mu} \phi_{\mu}(\mathbf{q}) \Gamma^{\mu}(\mathbf{q}) + \sum_{\mu} \phi_{\mu}(-\mathbf{q}) \Gamma^{\mu}(-\mathbf{q}) \right]}, \quad (42)$$

where

$$\vec{\Gamma}(\mathbf{q}) \equiv \begin{bmatrix} \sum_{\mathbf{k};\alpha,\beta} \overline{c}_{\mathbf{k}+\mathbf{q},\alpha} \Gamma^{x}_{\alpha\beta} c_{\mathbf{k},\beta} \\ \sum_{\mathbf{k};\alpha,\beta} \overline{c}_{\mathbf{k}+\mathbf{q},\alpha} \Gamma^{y}_{\alpha\beta} c_{\mathbf{k},\beta} \\ \sum_{\mathbf{k};\alpha,\beta} \overline{c}_{\mathbf{k}+\mathbf{q},\alpha} \Gamma^{z}_{\alpha\beta} c_{\mathbf{k},\beta} \end{bmatrix},$$
(43)

and the measure is given by

$$\mathcal{D}[\overline{\phi}, \phi] = \prod_{\mu = \{x, y, z\}} \mathcal{D}[\overline{\phi}_{\mu}, \phi_{\mu}]$$
$$= \prod_{\mu = \{x, y, z\}} \left( \lim_{N \to \infty} \prod_{l=1}^{N} \frac{d\overline{\phi}_{\mu, l} d\phi_{\mu, l}}{2\pi i} \right)$$
$$\equiv \prod_{\mu = \{x, y, z\}} \frac{d\overline{\phi}_{\mu} d\phi_{\mu}}{2\pi i}.$$
(44)

Integrating out the bosonic field variable using the identity:

$$\int \prod_{\alpha} \frac{d\overline{b}_{\alpha} db_{\alpha}}{2\pi i} e^{-(\overline{b}_{\alpha} M_{\alpha\beta} b_{\beta} - \overline{j}_{\alpha} b_{\alpha} - \overline{b}_{\alpha} j_{\alpha})} = \frac{e^{\overline{j} \cdot M^{-1} j}}{\det[M]},$$
(45)

we thus arrive at  $Z = \int \mathcal{D}[\overline{c}, c] e^{-S_c} e^{-S_{eff}}$  with the effective interaction

$$-S_{\rm eff} = \int_{\tau,\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}',\mathbf{q}} (\mathcal{V}_{\alpha\beta\gamma\delta})_{\mathbf{q}} c^{\dagger}_{\mathbf{k}+\mathbf{q},\alpha} c_{\mathbf{k},\beta} c^{\dagger}_{\mathbf{k}'-\mathbf{q},\gamma} c_{\mathbf{k}',\delta} , \qquad (46)$$

where the interaction vertex is,

$$(\mathcal{V}_{\alpha\beta\gamma\delta})_{\mathbf{q}} = \left[ f_{0}(\mathbf{q}) \left( \Gamma_{\alpha\beta}^{x} \Gamma_{\gamma\delta}^{x} + \Gamma_{\alpha\beta}^{y} \Gamma_{\gamma\delta}^{y} \right) + f_{1}(\mathbf{q}) \left( \Gamma_{\alpha\beta}^{z} \Gamma_{\gamma\delta}^{z} \right) - f_{2\nu}(\mathbf{q}) \left( \Gamma_{\alpha\beta}^{x} \Gamma_{\gamma\delta}^{x} - \Gamma_{\alpha\beta}^{y} \Gamma_{\gamma\delta}^{y} \right) - f_{2\mu}(\mathbf{q}) \left( \Gamma_{\alpha\beta}^{x} \Gamma_{\gamma\delta}^{y} + \Gamma_{\alpha\beta}^{y} \Gamma_{\gamma\delta}^{x} \right) \right],$$

$$(47)$$

and the interaction potential terms are,

$$f_0(\mathbf{q}) \equiv \frac{\left(a_0 \mathbf{q}^2 + m_Q\right)}{\left(a_0 \mathbf{q}^2 + m_Q\right)^2 - a_2^2 \left(q_\mu^4 + q_\nu^4\right)},\tag{48}$$

$$f_1(\mathbf{q}) \equiv \frac{1}{a_1(\mathbf{q})^2 + m_{\mathcal{O}}},\tag{49}$$

$$f_{2\mu}(\mathbf{q}) \equiv \frac{a_2 q_{\mu}^2}{\left(a_0 \mathbf{q}^2 + m_{\mathcal{Q}}\right)^2 - a_2^2 \left(q_{\mu}^4 + q_{\nu}^4\right)},\tag{50}$$

$$f_{2\nu}(\mathbf{q}) \equiv \frac{a_2 q_{\nu}^2}{\left(a_0 \mathbf{q}^2 + m_{\mathcal{Q}}\right)^2 - a_2^2 \left(q_{\mu}^4 + q_{\nu}^4\right)}.$$
(51)

We note that once again,  $q_{\nu}^2 \equiv \frac{1}{2}(2q_z^2 - q_x^2 - q_y^2)$  and  $q_{\mu}^2 \equiv \frac{\sqrt{3}}{2}(q_x^2 - q_y^2)$ . This interaction is prepared for investigating superconducting instabilities by (as described in the main text) (i) normal ordering the interaction :  $c_{\mathbf{k}+\mathbf{q},\alpha}^{\dagger}c_{\mathbf{k},\beta}c_{\mathbf{k}'-\mathbf{q},\gamma}^{\dagger}c_{\mathbf{k}',\delta}$ :  $= c_{\mathbf{k}+\mathbf{q},\alpha}^{\dagger}c_{\mathbf{k}',\delta}c_{\mathbf{k},\beta}$ , and (ii) projecting the Cooper pairs to being formed by opposite momentum electrons (in the same spirit as BCS theory),  $\mathbf{k}' = -\mathbf{k}$ . This leads to the effective interaction Hamiltonian in Eq. 7.

# D Symmetry decomposition of total angular momentum Cooper pair states

The total angular momentum Cooper pair states can be elegantly decoupled into the irreps of the point group  $O_h$ . The  $O_h$  point group contains 48 elements  $O_h = \{T_d, \mathbb{I} \times T_d\}$ , where  $\mathbb{I}$  is inversion, and the  $T_d$  elements are,  $T_d = \{E, C_{31}^+, C_{31}^-, C_{32}^+, C_{33}^-, C_{33}^+, C_{34}^-, C_{2x}^-, C_{2y}^-, C_{2z}^-, S_{4x}^+, S_{4y}^+, S_{4z}^+, S_{4x}^-, S_{4y}^-, S_{4z}^-, \sigma_{da}^-, \sigma_{db}^-, \sigma_{dc}^-, \sigma_{dd}^-, \sigma_{df}^-\}$  where we use the standard Schoenflies notation to denote the symmetry elements.

The total angular momentum states can be used to construct basis functions for each of the irreps using the projection operator,

$$P_{\alpha}^{i} = \frac{d_{\alpha}}{g} \sum_{G} \left\langle \Gamma_{\alpha}^{i} \right| G \left| \Gamma_{\alpha}^{i} \right\rangle^{*}, \qquad (52)$$

where *i* labels the basis function of the  $d_{\alpha}$ -dimensional irrep  $\Gamma_{\alpha}$  (i.e. the basis function is  $|\Gamma_{\alpha}^{i}\rangle$ ). g = 48 is the order of the point group of interest, and  $\alpha$  runs over the possible irreps in  $O_h$ . In order to employ the projection operator, the matrix elements  $\langle \Gamma_{\alpha}^{i} | G | \Gamma_{\alpha}^{i} \rangle^{*}$  in Eq. 52 need to be extracted. Since the basis functions of the irreps in terms of cartesian basis states is known (for example, for  $T_{2g}$ , the basis functions are  $|\Gamma_{T_{2g}}\rangle = \{yz, xz, xy\}$ ), they are employed (along with the cartesian representation of the elements of  $O_h$ ) to compute the aforementioned matrix element, and thus the projection operator.

# E Cooper pair composition from $j = \frac{1}{2}, \frac{3}{2}$ sectors of conduction electrons

The Cooper pair operator associated with a particular irrep can be constructed from different means depending on the angular momentum j associated with the individual conduction electrons. We list the possibilities below, and use the notation of

$$\Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( j_1, m_{j_1} \middle| j_2, m_{j_2} \right) = c_{j_1, m_{j_1}; \mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} c_{j_2, m_{j_2}; -\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger},$$
(53)

for brevity. We organize the Cooper pairs in terms of even or odd total angular momentum *J*, as well as the conduction electrons sector from which they are constructed from. Even J:  $\frac{1}{2} \otimes \frac{1}{2}$ 

$$(A_{1}^{\dagger;J=0})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right].$$
(54)

Odd J:  $\frac{1}{2} \otimes \frac{1}{2}$ 

$$(T_{1^{(1)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right], \tag{55}$$

$$(T_{1^{(2)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right], \tag{56}$$

$$(T_{1^{(3)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right].$$
(57)

Even J:  $\frac{3}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2}$ 

$$(A_{1}^{\dagger;J=0})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) \right],$$
(58)

$$(E_{(1)}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right],$$
(59)  
$$(E_{(2)}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right],$$
(59)

$$(T_{2^{(1)}}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{2} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right],$$
(61)

$$(T_{2^{(2)}}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) \right],$$

$$(T_{2^{(3)}}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{2} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) \right],$$

$$(62)$$

$$= \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right].$$

$$(63)$$

Odd J:  $\frac{3}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2}$ 

$$(T_{1^{(1)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2} \sqrt{\frac{3}{5}} \bigg[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \bigg( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \Big| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \bigg) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \bigg( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \Big| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \bigg) \\ - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \bigg( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \Big| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \bigg) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \bigg( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \Big| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \bigg) \bigg] \\ - \frac{1}{\sqrt{5}} \bigg[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \bigg( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \Big| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \bigg) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \bigg( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \Big| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \bigg) \bigg],$$
(64)

$$(T_{1^{(2)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{2} \sqrt{\frac{3}{5}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) \right] \\ + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right] \\ - \frac{i}{\sqrt{5}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right], \tag{65}$$
$$(T_{1^{(3)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{5}} \left[ 3\Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right]$$

$$= \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + 3\Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) \right],$$
(66)

$$(A_{2}^{\dagger;J=3})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{2} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right],$$
(67)

$$(T_{1^{(1)}}^{\dagger;J=3})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{\sqrt{5}}{4} \left( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) \right) - \frac{3}{4\sqrt{5}} \left( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right] - \frac{1}{4} \sqrt{\frac{3}{5}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right],$$
(68)

$$(T_{1(2)}^{\dagger;J=3})_{\mathbf{k}} = i\frac{\sqrt{5}}{4} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) \right) + \frac{3}{4\sqrt{5}} \left( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right] + i\frac{1}{4} \sqrt{\frac{3}{5}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) \right] + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right],$$
(69)

$$(T_{1^{(3)}}^{\dagger;J=3})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{5}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) + 3\Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + 3\Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) \right],$$
(70)

$$(T_{2^{(1)}}^{\dagger;J=3})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{\sqrt{3}}{4} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right] \\ - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) \right] \\ + \frac{1}{4} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) \right] \\ - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right],$$
(71)

$$(T_{2^{(2)}}^{\dagger;J=3})_{\mathbf{k}} = i\frac{\sqrt{3}}{4} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right] - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) \right] - i\frac{1}{4} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) \right] + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right],$$
(72)  
$$(T_{2^{(3)}}^{\dagger;J=3})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{\sqrt{3}}{4} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) \\ \div \left( 3, -1 \middle| 3, -3 \right) \qquad \div \left( 3, -3 \middle| 3, -1 \right) \right]$$

$$-\Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left(\frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left(\frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right].$$
(73)

For Cooper pairs created from the mixed sector of j = 1/2 and j = 3/2 the ordering of the fermionic operators are important. We use the  $\tilde{\mathcal{M}}$  notation to indicate operators where the order of the operators is interchanged. Even J:  $\frac{3}{2} \otimes \frac{1}{2}$ ;  $[\frac{1}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2}]$ 

$$(E_{(1)}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right], \tag{74}$$

$$(E_{(2)}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right], \tag{75}$$

$$(\tilde{E}_{(1)}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) \right], \tag{76}$$

$$(\tilde{E}_{(2)}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right],\tag{77}$$

$$(T_{2^{(1)}}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \sqrt{3} \left( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right) \right],$$
(78)

$$(T_{2^{(2)}}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{2\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right]$$

$$+ \sqrt{2} \left( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, -\frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right]$$
(70)

$$+\sqrt{3}\left(\Delta_{k}^{\dagger}\left(\frac{3}{2},\frac{1}{2}\middle|\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2}\right)-\Delta_{k}^{\dagger}\left(\frac{3}{2},\frac{1}{2}\middle|\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2}\right)\right)\right],$$
(79)

$$(T_{2^{(3)}}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right], \tag{80}$$
$$(\tilde{T}_{2^{(1)}}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) \right]$$

$$+ \sqrt{3} \left( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right) \right],$$

$$(81)$$

$$(\tilde{T}_{2^{(2)}}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{2\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) + \sqrt{3} \left( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right) \right],$$
(82)

$$(\tilde{T}_{2^{(3)}}^{\dagger;J=2})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) \right].$$
(83)

Odd J:  $\frac{3}{2} \otimes \frac{1}{2}$ ;  $[\frac{1}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2}]$ 

$$(T_{1^{(1)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{2\sqrt{2}} \left[ -\Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left(\frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left(\frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \sqrt{3} \left( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left(\frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left(\frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right) \right],$$
(84)

$$(T_{1^{(2)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{2}} \left[ -\Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) + \sqrt{3} \left( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right) \right],$$
(85)

$$(T_{1^{(3)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) \right], \tag{86}$$

$$(\tilde{T}_{1^{(1)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{2\sqrt{2}} \bigg[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \bigg( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \bigg| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \bigg) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \bigg( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \bigg| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \bigg) \\ - \sqrt{3} \bigg( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \bigg( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \bigg| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \bigg) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \bigg( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \bigg| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \bigg) \bigg) \bigg],$$
(87)

$$(\tilde{T}_{1^{(2)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{2}} \left[ \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) - \sqrt{3} \left( \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{3}{2} \right) - \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-3}{2} \right) \right) \right],$$
(88)

$$(\tilde{T}_{1^{(3)}}^{\dagger;J=1})_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{i}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ -\Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \right) + \Delta_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \left( \frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2} \middle| \frac{3}{2}, \frac{-1}{2} \right) \right].$$
(89)

# F Two-channel Kondo interaction derived pairing interactions

The pairing interactions generated from the two-channel Kondo interaction can be classified into even and odd spatial parity, which follows from the even and odd J angular momentum, in Eqs. 91 and 92, respectively,

$$H_{\rm eff}^{\rm 2CK} = \left[ H_{\rm even}^{\rm 2CK} + H_{\rm odd}^{\rm 2CK} \right].$$
(90)

For brevity, we drop the superscript indicating the total angular momentum; Fig. 1 indicates the total angular momentum of the Cooper pair.

$$H_{\text{even}}^{2\text{CK}} = -\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ -f_1 J_3^2 + 2J_1^2 f_0 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} A_{1\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} A_{1\mathbf{k}'} - \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_1 J_3^2 - 2J_1^2 f_{2\nu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} E_{(1)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} E_{(1)\mathbf{k}'} - \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_1 J_3^2 + 2J_1^2 f_{2\nu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} E_{(2)\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger} + \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ 2J_1^2 f_{2\mu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( E_{(1)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} E_{(2)\mathbf{k}'} + \text{h.c.} \right) + \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_1 J_3^2 + 2J_1^2 f_0 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \vec{T}_{2\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \cdot \vec{T}_{2\mathbf{k}'} , \qquad (91)$$

$$\begin{split} H_{\text{odd}}^{2\text{CK}} &= -\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ -f_{1}J_{3}^{2} - 2J_{1}^{2}f_{0} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} A_{2\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger} A_{2\mathbf{k}'} - \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ -f_{1}J_{3}^{2} + 2f_{0}J_{1}^{2} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \vec{T}_{-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \cdot \vec{T}_{-\mathbf{k}'} \quad (92) \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_{1}J_{3}^{2} + J_{1}^{2}f_{2\nu} - \sqrt{3}J_{1}^{2}f_{2\mu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{2^{(1)}\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{2^{(1)}\mathbf{k}'} \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_{1}J_{3}^{2} - J_{1}^{2}f_{2\nu} + \sqrt{3}J_{1}^{2}f_{2\mu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{+^{(1)}\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{+^{(1)}\mathbf{k}'} \\ &+ \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ -\sqrt{3}J_{1}^{2}f_{2\nu} - J_{1}^{2}f_{2\mu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( T_{2^{(1)}\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{+^{(1)}\mathbf{k}'} + \mathbf{h.c.} \right) \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_{1}J_{3}^{2} + J_{1}^{2}f_{2\nu} - \sqrt{3}J_{1}^{2}f_{2\mu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{2^{(2)}\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{2^{(2)}\mathbf{k}'} \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_{1}J_{3}^{2} - J_{1}^{2}f_{2\nu} - \sqrt{3}J_{1}^{2}f_{2\mu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{2^{(2)}\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{2^{(2)}\mathbf{k}'} \\ &+ \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ \sqrt{3}J_{1}^{2}f_{2\nu} - J_{1}^{2}f_{2\mu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( T_{2^{(2)}\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{+^{(2)}\mathbf{k}'} + \mathbf{h.c.} \right) \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ \sqrt{3}J_{1}^{2}f_{2\nu} - J_{1}^{2}f_{2\mu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( T_{2^{(2)}\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{+^{(2)}\mathbf{k}'} + \mathbf{h.c.} \right) \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_{1}J_{3}^{2} - 2J_{1}^{2}f_{2\nu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{2^{(3)}\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{2^{(3)}\mathbf{k}'} - \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_{1}J_{3}^{2} + 2J_{1}^{2}f_{2\nu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{+^{(3)}\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger} \\ &+ \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ -2J_{1}^{2}f_{2\mu} \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( T_{2^{(3)}\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{2^{(3)}\mathbf{k}'} + T_{+^{(3)}\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{2^{(3)}\mathbf{k}'} \right], \tag{93}$$

where the linear combination of the  $T_1$  irreps are defined by

$$T_{+(1,3)}^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{5}} \Big( -2T_{1(1,3)}^{\dagger;J=1} + T_{1(1,3)}^{\dagger;J=3} \Big), \tag{94}$$

$$T_{-(1,3)}^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{5}} \Big( -T_{1(1,3)}^{\dagger;J=1} - 2T_{1(1,3)}^{\dagger;J=3} \Big),$$
(95)

$$T_{+(2)}^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{5}} \Big( -2T_{1(2)}^{\dagger;J=1} - T_{1(2)}^{\dagger;J=3} \Big),$$
(96)

$$T_{-(2)}^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{5}} \Big( T_{1(2)}^{\dagger;J=1} - 2T_{1(2)}^{\dagger;J=3} \Big).$$
(97)

## G Novel Kondo interaction derived pairing interactions

The pairing interactions arising from the novel Kondo interaction can be classified into two types of models: (i) Cooper pairs formed separately within j = 1/2 and j = 3/2 scatter off each other, and (ii) Cooper pairs formed with one fermion from j = 1/2 and the other from j = 3/ sector. We present the Hamiltonians for each of the families of models below.

### **G.1** Cooper pairs formed separately within j = 1/2 and j = 3/2 sectors

The pairing interaction can be decomposed into even and odd parity sectors (which follows from the even and odd *J* total angular momentum),

$$H_{\rm eff}^{\rm novel (i)} = \left[ H_{\rm even}^{\rm novel (i)} + H_{\rm odd}^{\rm novel (i)} \right],\tag{98}$$

where

$$\begin{aligned} H_{\text{even}}^{\text{novel (i)}} &= -\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ \sqrt{2} f_0 J_2^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( A_{1;j=\frac{3}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} A_{1;j=\frac{1}{2};\mathbf{k}'} + \text{h.c.} \right) \\ &+ \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ \sqrt{2} f_{2\nu} J_2^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( A_{1;j=\frac{1}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} E_{2;\mathbf{k}'}^{J=2} + \text{h.c.} \right) \\ &+ \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ \sqrt{2} f_{2\mu} J_2^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( A_{1;j=\frac{1}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} E_{1;\mathbf{k}'}^{J=2} + \text{h.c.} \right) \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_1 J_3^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( -A_{1;j=\frac{3}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} A_{1;j=\frac{3}{2};\mathbf{k}'} + \vec{E}_{\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger;J=2} \cdot \vec{E}_{\mathbf{k}'}^{J=2} \right). \end{aligned}$$
(99)

As seen in the above interaction, the  $A_1$  irrep arising from the pair formed by j = 1/2 sector of conduction electrons has a non-vanishing matrix element with the Cooper pairs formed from the j = 3/2 sector; we give the operators the corresponding j sector subscript label. We once again drop the total angular momentum superscript for brevity.

The odd parity pairing interactions are,

$$\begin{aligned} H_{\text{odd}}^{\text{novel (i)}} &= -\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ \sqrt{2} f_0 J_2^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( T_{1^{(1)};j=1/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{-^{(1)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'} + \text{h.c.} \right) \end{aligned} \tag{100} \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} f_{2\nu} J_2^2 - \sqrt{\frac{3}{2}} f_{2\mu} J_2^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( T_{1^{(1)};j=1/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{+^{(1)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'} + \text{h.c.} \right) \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ \sqrt{\frac{3}{2}} f_{2\nu} J_2^2 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} f_{2\mu} J_2^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( T_{1^{(1)};j=1/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{2^{(1)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'} + \text{h.c.} \right) \\ &+ \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_1 J_3^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( T_{-^{(1)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{-^{(1)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger} - T_{+^{(1)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{+^{(1)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger} \right] \end{aligned}$$

$$\begin{split} &-T_{2^{(1)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{2^{(1)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger}\Big)\\ &-\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big[-\sqrt{2}f_{0}J_{2}^{2}\Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big(T_{1^{(2)};j=1/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{-^{(2)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}+\mathbf{h.c.}\Big)\\ &-\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big[\frac{1}{\sqrt{2}}f_{2\nu}J_{2}^{2}+\sqrt{\frac{3}{2}}f_{2\mu}J_{2}^{2}\Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big(T_{1^{(2)};j=1/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{+^{(2)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}+\mathbf{h.c.}\Big)\\ &-\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big[-\sqrt{\frac{3}{2}}f_{2\nu}J_{2}^{2}+\frac{1}{\sqrt{2}}f_{2\mu}J_{2}^{2}\Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big(T_{1^{(2)};j=1/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{2^{(2)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}+\mathbf{h.c.}\Big)\\ &+\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big[f_{1}J_{3}^{2}\Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big(T_{-^{(2)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{-^{(2)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}-T_{+^{(2)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{+^{(2)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}+\mathbf{h.c.}\Big)\\ &+\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big[\sqrt{2}f_{0}J_{2}^{2}\Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big(T_{1^{(3)};j=1/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{-^{(3)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}+\mathbf{h.c.}\Big)\\ &-\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big[-\sqrt{2}f_{2\nu}J_{2}^{2}\Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big(T_{1^{(3)};j=1/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{+^{(3)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}+\mathbf{h.c.}\Big)\\ &-\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big[\sqrt{2}f_{2\mu}J_{2}^{2}\Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big(T_{1^{(3)};j=1/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{2^{(3)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}-T_{+^{(3)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger}+\mathbf{h.c.}\Big)\\ &+\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big[f_{1}J_{3}^{2}\Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'}\Big(T_{-^{(3)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{-^{(3)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}-T_{+^{(3)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger}T_{+^{(3)};j=3/2;\mathbf{k}'}\Big). \end{split}$$

The  $T_1$  irrep arising from the j = 1/2 sector has a non-vanishing matrix element with the Cooper pairs formed from the j = 3/2 sector; we once again present the operators with the corresponding *j* sector subscript label.

### **G.2** Cooper pairs formed from j = 1/2 and j = 3/2 sectors

The interaction arising from this case needs to be treated more carefully as the order in which the fermionic creation operators are written to form a given Cooper pair provides an additional complexity: for example, for the J = 2 pair, we can have  $E_{1k}^{\dagger}$  and  $\tilde{E}_{1k}^{\dagger}$  presented in Appendix E. To ensure the pairing function is odd under fermion-exchange *and* spatial inversion/parity, we need to consider symmetric and antisymmetric combinations of these pairing operators: one will yield an even under parity combination, while the other will yield and odd under parity combination:

$$\vec{E}_{\pm k}^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left( \vec{E}_{k}^{\dagger} \pm \vec{E}_{k}^{\dagger} \right), \qquad (101)$$

$$\vec{T}_{1\pm k}^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left( \vec{\tilde{T}}_{1k}^{\dagger} \pm \vec{T}_{1k}^{\dagger} \right),$$
(102)

$$\vec{T}_{2\pm k}^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left( \vec{\tilde{T}}_{2k}^{\dagger} \pm \vec{T}_{2k}^{\dagger} \right).$$
(103)

We thus organize the interaction Hamiltonians into even and odd under spatial parity Cooper pairs.

$$H_{\rm eff}^{\rm novel \, (ii)} = H_{\rm even}^{\rm novel \, (ii)} + H_{\rm odd}^{\rm novel \, (ii)}, \qquad (104)$$

where

$$H_{\text{even}}^{\text{novel (ii)}} = -\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_{2\nu}\beta^2 - f_0\beta^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} E_{+(1)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} E_{+(1)\mathbf{k}'} - \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ -f_{2\nu}\beta^2 - f_0\beta^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} E_{+(2)\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger} + \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ -f_{2\mu}\beta^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( E_{+(1)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} E_{+(2)\mathbf{k}'} + \text{h.c.} \right) + \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_{2\mu}\beta^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( E_{-(1)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} E_{-(2)\mathbf{k}'} + \text{h.c.} \right) \\ - \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ -f_{2\nu}\beta^2 + f_0\beta^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} E_{-(1)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} E_{-(1)\mathbf{k}'} - \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left[ f_{2\nu}\beta^2 + f_0\beta^2 \right]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} E_{-(2)\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger} ,$$
(105)

$$\begin{split} H_{\text{odd}}^{\text{novel (ii)}} &= -\sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \Big[ f_0 \beta^2 + \frac{1}{2} f_{2\nu} \beta^2 - \frac{\sqrt{3}}{2} f_{2\mu} \beta^2 \Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{2+(1)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{2+(1)\mathbf{k}'} \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \Big[ f_0 \beta^2 - \frac{1}{2} f_{2\nu} \beta^2 + \frac{\sqrt{3}}{2} f_{2\mu} \beta^2 \Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{1-(1)\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger} T_{1-(1)\mathbf{k}'} \\ &+ \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \Big[ -\frac{\sqrt{3}}{2} f_{2\nu} \beta^2 - \frac{1}{2} f_{2\mu} \beta^2 \Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( -iT_{2+(1)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{1-(1)\mathbf{k}'} + \mathbf{h.c.} \right) \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \Big[ f_0 \beta^2 + \frac{1}{2} f_{2\nu} \beta^2 + \frac{\sqrt{3}}{2} f_{2\mu} \beta^2 \Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{2+(2)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{2+(2)\mathbf{k}'} \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \Big[ f_0 \beta^2 - \frac{1}{2} f_{2\nu} \beta^2 - \frac{\sqrt{3}}{2} f_{2\mu} \beta^2 \Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{1-(2)\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger} T_{1-(2)\mathbf{k}'} \\ &+ \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \Big[ -\frac{\sqrt{3}}{2} f_{2\nu} \beta^2 + \frac{1}{2} f_{2\mu} \beta^2 \Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( iT_{2+(2)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{1-(2)\mathbf{k}'} + \mathbf{h.c.} \right) \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \Big[ f_0 \beta^2 - f_{2\nu} \beta^2 \Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{2+(3)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{2+(3)\mathbf{k}'} - \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \Big[ f_0 \beta^2 + f_{2\nu} \beta^2 \Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} T_{1-(3)\mathbf{k}'}^{\dagger} + \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \Big[ f_{2\mu} \beta^2 \Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( -iT_{2+(3)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{1-(3)\mathbf{k}'} + \mathbf{h.c.} \right) \\ &- \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \Big[ f_{2\mu} \beta^2 \Big]_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \left( -iT_{2+(3)\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} T_{1-(3)\mathbf{k}'} + \mathbf{h.c.} \right) \\ &- \Big\{ (T_{2+}, T_{1-}) \leftrightarrow (T_{2-}, T_{1+}) \Big\}, \end{split}$$

where once can notice that the  $E_+$  decouples from the  $E_-$ , and the  $T_{2\pm}$  couples to the same component of  $T_{1\mp}$ .

# H BCS Mean field Theory Gap equation

The BCS gap equation can be elegantly derived by the Hubbard–Stratonovich (HS) transformation. We present a sketch of the derivation below, focussing on the aspects that require special attention.

We consider the form of a typical collection of interaction terms,

$$S_{\rm int} = -\int_{0}^{\beta} d\tau \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \sum_{\alpha\beta} \overline{X}_{\mathbf{k}\alpha} (\Omega_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}'})_{\alpha\beta} X_{\mathbf{k}'\alpha} , \qquad (107)$$

where  $A^{\dagger}, B^{\dagger}$  are generic Cooper pair operators made up of conduction creation operator bilinears,  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta$  runs over the internal structure of the interaction potential  $(\Omega_{\mathbf{kk}'})_{\alpha\beta}$ ; as a simple

example, for the pairing instability arising in the  $\frac{3}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2}$  sector's  $\vec{E}^{J=2}$  Cooper pairs,  $(\Omega_{\mathbf{kk}'})_{\alpha\beta}$  is a 2 × 2 matrix in the internal structure, where each entry is a matrix in momentum space.

We now introduce the auxillary field  $\vec{z}_k$  into the partition function with its corresponding free action,

$$\int_{0}^{\beta} d\tau \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \sum_{\alpha\beta} \overline{z}_{\mathbf{k}\alpha} (V_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}'}^{g})_{\alpha\beta} z_{\mathbf{k}'\alpha}, \qquad (108)$$

where we use the generalized (Moore-Penrose) pseudoinverse. The pseudoinverse is typically introduced when solving a system of linear equations

$$A\vec{x} = \vec{b} \,. \tag{109}$$

When A is singular matrix, the unique inverse cannot be employed, thus necessitating the introduction of the pseudoinverse which provides the solution to Eq. 109,

$$\vec{x}_* = A^g \vec{b} + (\mathbb{I} - A^g A) \vec{\omega},$$
 (110)

where  $A^g$  is the pseudoinverse matrix, and  $\vec{\omega}$  is an arbitrary vector. Importantly, the pseudoinverse matrix satisfies the identity  $AA^gA = A$ , and provided that a solution exists for Eq. 109, then

$$AA^g \vec{b} = \vec{b} \,, \tag{111}$$

where we emphasize for the pseudoinverse matrix,  $A^{g}A \neq \mathbb{I}$  in general.

Returning back to the path integral, we perform the shift of the auxillary field,

$$z_{\mathbf{k}\alpha} = \Delta_{\mathbf{k}\alpha} + \sum_{\mathbf{p};\gamma} (V_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{p}})_{\alpha\gamma} X_{\mathbf{p}\gamma}, \qquad (112)$$

$$\overline{z}_{\mathbf{k}\alpha} = \overline{\Delta}_{\mathbf{k};\alpha} + \sum_{\mathbf{p},\gamma} \overline{X}_{\mathbf{p}\gamma} (V_{\mathbf{p}\mathbf{k}})_{\gamma\alpha}, \qquad (113)$$

where we now introduce the superconducting HS field  $\Delta_{k\alpha}$ . To make progress, the HS field is taken to satisfy the criterion,

$$\sum_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}'} \sum_{\alpha\beta} (V_{\mathbf{p}\mathbf{k}})_{\gamma\alpha} (V_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}'}^g)_{\alpha\beta} \Delta_{\mathbf{k}'\beta} = \Delta_{\mathbf{p}\gamma} \,. \tag{114}$$

For an invertible interaction, Eq. 114 reduces to a trivially true statement, but for a noninvertible matrix this equality is rationalized as the application of Eq. 111 with the identification of  $\vec{b}$  as the static HS field satisfying the linear equation  $\sum_{\mathbf{k}'} \sum_{\beta} (V_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}'})_{\alpha\beta} \langle X_{\mathbf{k}'\beta} \rangle = \Delta_{\mathbf{k}\alpha}$ . We thus we arrive at the effective interaction,

$$H_{\rm eff} = \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \sum_{\alpha,\beta} \overline{\Delta}_{\mathbf{k}\alpha} (V_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}'}^g)_{\alpha\beta} \Delta_{\mathbf{k}'\beta} + \sum_{\mathbf{k};\alpha} \left( \overline{\Delta}_{\mathbf{k}\alpha} X_{\mathbf{k}\alpha} + \overline{X}_{\mathbf{k}\alpha} \Delta_{\mathbf{k}\alpha} \right), \tag{115}$$

with the accompanying path integral,

$$Z = \int \mathcal{D}[\overline{\Delta}, \Delta] \mathcal{D}[\overline{c}, c] e^{-\int_0^\beta d\tau (\sum_k \vec{c}_k (\partial_\tau + \epsilon_k) \vec{c}_k + H_{\text{eff}})}, \qquad (116)$$

where we reinserted the free fermion action, where  $\epsilon_{\mathbf{k}} = \frac{\mathbf{k}^2}{2m} - \mu_F$ .

To make progress, the fermions are re-written in a Nambu basis depending on the nature of the interactions in Eq. 115. For the Cooper pairs arising in the  $\frac{3}{2} \otimes \frac{3}{2}$  sector, the Nambu basis is,

$$\vec{\psi}_{\mathbf{k};\frac{3}{2}\otimes\frac{3}{2}}^{\dagger} = \begin{bmatrix} c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{2}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{1}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{-1}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{-3}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{2}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{2}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{1}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{-1}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{-1}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \end{bmatrix}, \qquad (117)$$

and for models that involve both  $j = \frac{3}{2}$  and  $j = \frac{1}{2}$  fermions the basis is expanded to be

$$\vec{\psi}_{\mathbf{k};\frac{1}{2}\otimes\frac{3}{2}}^{\dagger} = \begin{bmatrix} c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{2}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{1}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{1}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2};\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{2}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{2}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{2}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{3}{2},\frac{1}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \\ c_{\frac{1}{2},\frac{1}{2};-\mathbf{k}}^{\dagger} \end{bmatrix} .$$
(118)

In terms of the Nambu basis, the HS transformed path integral is bilinear and as such we can simply integrate out the fermionic fields. The subsequent fermionic determinant is of the form  $\prod_{i=1,\dots,m} (\omega_n^2 + E_{ik}^2)^2$ , where  $\omega_n$  is the fermionic Matsubara frequency, *m* runs over the possible quasiparticle energies. In the cases we consider in this work, m = 1, 2, 3 are the only possibilities; for m = 1, the determinant is  $(\omega_n^2 + E_{1k}^2)^4$ . Finally, approximating the path integral via the standard saddle-point approximation, leads to the mean-field free energy,

$$F_{\rm MFT} = -T \ln Z_{BCS}$$
  
=  $-2T \sum_{\mathbf{k},\omega_n} \sum_{i=1...m} \ln(\omega_n^2 + E_{i\mathbf{k}}^2) + \beta T \sum_{\mathbf{k},\mathbf{k}'} \sum_{\alpha,\beta} \overline{\Delta}_{\mathbf{k}\alpha}(\Omega_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}'}^g)_{\alpha\beta} \Delta_{\mathbf{k}'\beta}, \qquad (119)$ 

where  $\beta = 1/T$  in the second term comes from integrating a static term over  $\tau \in [0, \beta]$ . Extremizing the mean-field free energy with respect to  $\overline{\Delta_{q\gamma}}$  and multiplying by  $\sum_{q} \sum_{\gamma} (\Omega_{pq})_{a\gamma}$  leads to Eq. 30 in the main text. As mentioned above, for the case of a single quasiparticle energy (m = 1) the right hand side of Eq. 30 has an additional factor of 2.

In solving the mean-field equations, we employ the following choices for the phenomenological constants: m = 0.2,  $\mu_F = 1.0$ ,  $a_0 = 2.5$ ,  $a_1 = 0.67$ ,  $a_2 = 1.67$ ,  $m_Q = 4.0$ ,  $m_Q = 20.8$ . The values of phenomenological Landau values were chosen so as to connect with the experimental setting. In particular, the quadrupolar mass term ( $m_Q \sim (T - T_Q)$ ) was taken to be



Figure 5: Momentum space distribution of the superconducting states arising from the two-channel Kondo interaction presented in Table 1 and Fig. 1.

smaller than the octupolar mass ( $m_{\mathcal{O}} \sim (T - T_{\mathcal{O}})$ ) to reflect the fact that the proposed octupolar ordering temperature  $T_{\mathcal{O}}$  is lower than the quadrupolar ordering temperature  $T_{\mathcal{Q}}$  [65]; here *T* is the temperature, which is taken to be above  $T_{\mathcal{Q},\mathcal{O}}$  in the paramagnetic phase. The choices of the other phenomenological values  $a_{0,1,2} > 0$  were chosen to ensure that the multipolar action is non-singular, thus permitting the Gaussian fluctuations to be integrated out. For the multipolar Kondo interactions, we choose uniformly  $\alpha, \beta, \gamma = 10$ , where in the two-channel (novel) interaction  $\beta = 0$  ( $\alpha = 0$ ).

# I Momentum space distribution of superconducting states

We present in Fig. 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 the momentum space distribution of the realized superconducting states induced by the two-channel and novel Kondo interactions. For the cases where there exist multiple degenerate solutions, we present the distribution of one solution for clarity.



Figure 6: Momentum space distribution of the superconducting states arising from the novel Kondo interaction of even parity presented in Table 2 and Fig. 2.



Figure 7: Momentum space distribution of the superconducting states (j = 1 component) arising from the novel Kondo interaction presented in Table 2 and Fig. 2.



Figure 8: Momentum space distribution of the superconducting states (j = 2 component) arising from the novel Kondo interaction presented in Table 2 and Fig. 2.



Figure 9: Momentum space distribution of the superconducting states (j = 3 component) arising from the novel Kondo interaction presented in Table 2 and Fig. 2.



Figure 10: Momentum space distribution of the superconducting states arising from the novel Kondo interaction presented in Table 2 and Fig. 3.

## References

- C. C. Tsuei and J. R. Kirtley, *Pairing symmetry in cuprate superconductors*, Rev. Mod. Phys. 72, 969 (2000), doi:10.1103/RevModPhys.72.969.
- [2] K. Matsuda, Y. Kohori and T. Kohara, Existence of line nodes in the superconducting energy gap of antiferromagnetic superconductor URu<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub> - <sup>101</sup>Ru study -, J. Phys. Soc. Jpn. 65, 679 (1996), doi:10.1143/JPSJ.65.679.
- [3] K.-i. Ueda, Y. Kitaoka, H. Yamada, Y. Kohori, T. Kohara and K. Asayama, <sup>29</sup>Si knight shift in the heavy-fermion superconductor CeCu<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>, J. Phys. Soc. Jpn. 56, 867 (1987), doi:10.1143/JPSJ.56.867.
- [4] H. Tou, Y. Kitaoka, K. Asayama, N. Kimura, Y. Onuki, E. Yamamoto and K. Maezawa, Odd-parity superconductivity with parallel spin pairing in upt<sub>3</sub>: Evidence from <sup>195</sup>Pt knight shift study, Phys. Rev. Lett. 77, 1374 (1996), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.77.1374.
- [5] G. M. Luke, A. Keren, L. P. Le, W. D. Wu, Y. J. Uemura, D. A. Bonn, L. Taillefer and J. D. Garrett, *Muon spin relaxation in* upt<sub>3</sub>, Phys. Rev. Lett. **71**, 1466 (1993), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.71.1466.
- [6] K. Ishida et al., Spin-triplet superconductivity in UNi<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>3</sub> revealed by the <sup>27</sup>Al knight shift measurement, Phys. Rev. Lett. 89, 037002 (2002), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.89.037002.
- [7] D. E. MacLaughlin, C. Tien, W. G. Clark, M. D. Lan, Z. Fisk, J. L. Smith and H. R. Ott, *Nuclear magnetic resonance and heavy-fermion superconductivity in (U, Th)Be*<sub>13</sub>, Phys. Rev. Lett. **53**, 1833 (1984), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.53.1833.
- [8] K. Izawa, Y. Nakajima, J. Goryo, Y. Matsuda, S. Osaki, H. Sugawara, H. Sato, P. Thalmeier and K. Maki, *Multiple superconducting phases in new heavy fermion superconductor PrOs*<sub>4</sub>*Sb*<sub>12</sub>, Phys. Rev. Lett. **90**, 117001 (2003), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.90.117001.
- [9] Y. Aoki et al., Time-reversal symmetry-breaking superconductivity in heavy-fermion  $PrOs_4Sb_{12}$  detected by muon-spin relaxation, Phys. Rev. Lett. **91**, 067003 (2003), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.91.067003.
- K. Izawa, H. Yamaguchi, Y. Matsuda, H. Shishido, R. Settai and Y. Onuki, Angular position of nodes in the superconducting gap of quasi-2D heavy-fermion superconductor CeCoIn<sub>5</sub>, Phys. Rev. Lett. 87, 057002 (2001), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.87.057002.
- [11] Y. Kohori, Y. Yamato, Y. Iwamoto and T. Kohara, Appearance of anisotropic non s-wave superconductivity above the critical pressure of antiferromagnetic CeRhIn<sub>5</sub>, Eur. Phys. J. B 18, 601 (2000), doi:10.1007/PL00011077.
- [12] E. Bauer et al., *Heavy fermion superconductivity and magnetic order in noncentrosymmetric CePt*<sub>3</sub>Si, Phys. Rev. Lett. **92**, 027003 (2004), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.92.027003.
- [13] E. Bauer et al., *Heavy fermion superconductivity and magnetic order in noncentrosymmetric cept*<sub>3</sub>Si, Phys. Rev. Lett. **92**, 027003 (2004), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.92.027003.
- [14] N. J. Curro et al., Unconventional superconductivity in PuCoGa<sub>5</sub>, Phys. B 434, 622 (2005), doi:10.1016/j.physb.2006.01.352.
- [15] D. Daghero et al., Strong-coupling d-wave superconductivity in PuCoGa<sub>5</sub> probed by pointcontact spectroscopy, Nat. Commun. 3, 786 (2012), doi:10.1038/ncomms1785.

- [16] K. Deguchi, Z. Q. Mao, H. Yaguchi and Y. Maeno, Gap structure of the spin-triplet superconductor Sr<sub>2</sub>RuO<sub>4</sub> determined from the field-orientation dependence of the specific heat, Phys. Rev. Lett. **92**, 047002 (2004), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.92.047002.
- [17] K. Izawa et al., Superconducting gap structure of spin-triplet superconductor  $Sr_2RuO_4$  studied by thermal conductivity, Phys. Rev. Lett. **86**, 2653 (2001), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.86.2653.
- [18] K. Ishida, H. Mukuda, Y. Kitaoka, K. Asayama, Z. Q. Mao, Y. Mori and Y. Maeno, Spintriplet superconductivity in Sr<sub>2</sub>RuO<sub>4</sub> identified by <sup>1</sup>70 Knight shift, Nature **396**, 658 (1998), doi:10.1038/25315.
- [19] G. M. Luke, *Time-reversal symmetry-breaking superconductivity in Sr<sub>2</sub>RuO*<sub>4</sub>, Nature 394, 558 (1998), doi:10.1038/29038.
- [20] N. Fujiwara, N. Môri, Y. Uwatoko, T. Matsumoto, N. Motoyama and S. Uchida, Superconductivity of the Sr<sub>2</sub>Ca<sub>12</sub>Cu<sub>24</sub>O<sub>41</sub> spin-ladder system: Are the superconducting pairing and the spin-gap formation of the same origin?, Phys. Rev. Lett. **90**, 137001 (2003), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.90.137001.
- [21] M. Kato, Possible spin triplet superconductivity in Na<sub>x</sub>CoO<sub>2</sub>· yH<sub>2</sub>o —<sup>59</sup>Co NMR studies, J. Phys. 18, 669 (2005), doi:10.1088/0953-8984/18/2/022.
- [22] I. I. Mazin, A critical assessment of the superconducting pairing symmetry in Na<sub>x</sub>CoO<sub>2</sub>·yH<sub>2</sub>O, Nat. Phys. 1, 91 (2005), doi:10.1038/nphys126.
- [23] T. Fujimoto, G.-q. Zheng, Y. Kitaoka, R. L. Meng, J. Cmaidalka and C. W. Chu, Unconventional superconductivity and electron correlations in the cobalt oxyhydrate Na<sub>0.35</sub>CoO<sub>2</sub>·yH<sub>2</sub>O from nuclear quadrupole resonance, Phys. Rev. Lett. **92**, 047004 (2004), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.92.047004.
- [24] K. Izawa, H. Yamaguchi, T. Sasaki and Y. Matsuda, Superconducting gap structure of κ -BEDT - TTF)<sub>2</sub>Cu(NCS)<sub>2</sub> probed by thermal conductivity tensor, Phys. Rev. Lett. 88, 027002 (2001), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.88.027002.
- [25] I. J. Lee, S. E. Brown, W. G. Clark, M. J. Strouse, M. J. Naughton, W. Kang and P. M. Chaikin, *Triplet superconductivity in an organic superconductor probed by NMR Knight shift*, Phys. Rev. Lett. 88, 017004 (2001), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.88.017004.
- [26] S. Belin and K. Behnia, Thermal conductivity of superconducting (TMTSF)<sub>2</sub>ClO<sub>4</sub>: Evidence for a nodeless gap, Phys. Rev. Lett. **79**, 2125 (1997), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.79.2125.
- [27] H. Kotegawa et al., Evidence for uniform coexistence of ferromagnetism and unconventional superconductivity in UGe<sub>2</sub>: A <sup>73</sup>Ge-NQR study under pressure, J. Phys. Soc. Jpn. 74, 705 (2005), doi:10.1143/JPSJ.74.705.
- [28] S. S. Saxena et al., Superconductivity on the border of itinerant-electron ferromagnetism in UGe<sub>2</sub>, Nature 406, 587 (2000), doi:10.1038/35020500.
- [29] D. Aoki, A. Huxley, E. Ressouche, D. Braithwaite, J. Flouquet, J.-P. Brison, E. Lhotel and C. Paulsen, *Coexistence of superconductivity and ferromagnetism in URhGe*, Nature 413, 613 (2001), doi:10.1038/35098048.
- [30] T. Akazawa, H. Hidaka, T. Fujiwara, T. C. Kobayashi, E. Yamamoto, Y. Haga, R. Settai and Y. Nuki, *Pressure-induced superconductivity in ferromagnetic UIr without inversion symmetry*, J. Phys. 16, L29 (2004), doi:10.1016/j.physb.2005.01.335.

- [31] M. Sigrist and K. Ueda, Phenomenological theory of unconventional superconductivity, Rev. Mod. Phys. 63, 239 (1991), doi:10.1103/RevModPhys.63.239.
- [32] Y. Matsuda, K. Izawa and I. Vekhter, Nodal structure of unconventional superconductors probed by angle resolved thermal transport measurements, J. Phys. 18, R705 (2006), doi:10.1088/0953-8984/18/44/R01.
- [33] H. Tou, Y. Kitaoka, K. Ishida, K. Asayama, N. Kimura, Y. Onuki, E. Yamamoto, Y. Haga and K. Maezawa, Nonunitary spin-triplet superconductivity in UPt<sub>3</sub>: Evidence from <sup>195</sup>Pt Knight shift study, Phys. Rev. Lett. 80, 3129 (1998), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.80.3129.
- [34] N. Metoki, Y. Haga, Y. Koike and Y. Onuki, Superconducting energy gap observed in the magnetic excitation spectra of a heavy fermion superconductor UPd<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>3</sub>, Phys. Rev. Lett. 80, 5417 (1998), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.80.5417.
- [35] N. Bernhoeft, N. Sato, B. Roessli, N. Aso, A. Hiess, G. H. Lander, Y. Endoh and T. Komatsubara, *Enhancement of magnetic fluctuations on passing below*  $T_c$  *in the heavy fermion superconductor*  $UPd_2Al_3$ , Phys. Rev. Lett. **81**, 4244 (1998), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.81.4244.
- [36] N. K. Sato et al., Strong coupling between local moments and superconducting 'heavy' electrons in UPd<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>3</sub>, Nature 410, 340 (2001), doi:10.1038/35066519.
- [37] T. Saito, S. Onari and H. Kontani, Orbital fluctuation theory in iron pnictides: Effects of As-Fe-As bond angle, isotope substitution, and Z<sub>2</sub>-orbital pocket on superconductivity, Phys. Rev. B 82, 144510 (2010), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.82.144510.
- [38] Y. Kuramoto, H. Kusunose and A. Kiss, Multipole orders and fluctuations in strongly correlated electron systems, J. Phys. Soc. Jpn. 78, 072001 (2009), doi:10.1143/JPSJ.78.072001.
- [39] J. A. Mydosh and P. M. Oppeneer, Colloquium: Hidden order, superconductivity, and magnetism: The unsolved case of URu<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>, Rev. Mod. Phys. 83, 1301 (2011), doi:10.1103/RevModPhys.83.1301.
- [40] P. Santini, S. Carretta, G. Amoretti, R. Caciuffo, N. Magnani and G. H. Lander, *Multipolar interactions in f-electron systems: The paradigm of actinide dioxides*, Rev. Mod. Phys. 81, 807 (2009), doi:10.1103/RevModPhys.81.807.
- [41] T. Onimaru and H. Kusunose, *Exotic quadrupolar phenomena in non-kramers doublet systems the cases of*  $PrT_2Zn_{20}$  (T = Ir, Rh) and  $PrT_2Al_{20}$  (T = V, Ti) -, J. Phys. Soc. Jpn. **85**, 082002 (2016), doi:10.7566/JPSJ.85.082002.
- [42] D. L. Cox and A. Zawadowski, Exotic Kondo effects in metals: Magnetic ions in a crystalline electric field and tunnelling centres, Adv. Phys. 47, 599 (1998), doi:10.1080/000187398243500.
- [43] A. S. Patri, I. Khait and Y. B. Kim, Emergent non-Fermi-liquid phenomena in multipolar quantum impurity systems, Phys. Rev. Research 2, 013257 (2020), doi:10.1103/PhysRevResearch.2.013257.
- [44] A. S. Patri and Y. B. Kim, Critical theory of non-Fermi liquid fixed point in multipolar Kondo problem, Phys. Rev. X 10, 041021 (2020), doi:10.1103/PhysRevX.10.041021.

- [45] D. J. Schultz, A. S. Patri and Y. B. Kim, Rise and fall of non-Fermi liquid fixed points in multipolar Kondo problems, Phys. Rev. Research 3, 013189 (2021), doi:10.1103/PhysRevResearch.3.013189.
- [46] K. Kaneko, N. Metoki, R. Shiina, T. D. Matsuda, M. Kohgi, K. Kuwahara and N. Bernhoeft, Neutron scattering study on the field-induced O<sub>xy</sub>-type antiferroquadrupolar ordering of the heavy-fermion superconductor PrOs<sub>4</sub>Sb<sub>12</sub>, Phys. Rev. B 75, 094408 (2007), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.75.094408.
- [47] E. W. Rosenberg, J.-H. Chu, J. P. C. Ruff, A. T. Hristov and I. R. Fisher, *Divergence of the quadrupole-strain susceptibility of the electronic nematic system YbRu<sub>2</sub>Ge<sub>2</sub>*, Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. USA **116**, 7232 (2019), doi:10.1073/pnas.1818910116.
- [48] K. Haule and G. Kotliar, Arrested Kondo effect and hidden order in URu<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>, Nature Phys. 5, 796 (2009), doi:10.1038/nphys1392.
- [49] M. E. Pezzoli, M. J. Graf, K. Haule, G. Kotliar and A. V. Balatsky, Local suppression of the hidden-order phase by impurities in URu<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>, Phys. Rev. B 83, 235106 (2011), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.83.235106.
- [50] P. Chandra, P. Coleman and R. Flint, Hastatic order in the heavy-fermion compound uRu<sub>2</sub>Si<sub>2</sub>, Nature 493, 621 (2013), doi:10.1038/nature11820.
- [51] T. J. Sato, S. Ibuka, Y. Nambu, T. Yamazaki, T. Hong, A. Sakai and S. Nakatsuji, *Ferroquadrupolar ordering in PrTi<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>20</sub>*, Phys. Rev. B 86, 184419 (2012), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.86.184419.
- [52] T. Onimaru, K. T. Matsumoto, Y. F. Inoue, K. Umeo, T. Sakakibara, Y. Karaki, M. Kubota and T. Takabatake, *Antiferroquadrupolar ordering in a Pr-based superconductor PrIr<sub>2</sub>Zn<sub>20</sub>*, Phys. Rev. Lett. **106**, 177001 (2011), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.106.177001.
- [53] S. Lee, S. Trebst, Y. B. Kim and A. Paramekanti, Landau theory of multipolar orders in Pr(Y)<sub>2</sub>X<sub>20</sub> Kondo materials (Y = Ti, V, Rh, Ir; X = Al, Zn), Phys. Rev. B 98, 134447 (2018), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.98.134447.
- [54] A. Sakai and S. Nakatsuji, *Kondo effects and multipolar order in the cubic PrTr<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>20</sub> (Tr = Ti, V), J. Phys. Soc. Jpn.* **80**, 063701 (2011), doi:10.1143/JPSJ.80.063701.
- [55] T. Onimaru et al., Quadrupole-driven non-Fermi-liquid and magnetic-field-induced heavy fermion states in a non-Kramers doublet system, Phys. Rev. B 94, 075134 (2016), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.94.075134.
- [56] M. Fu, A. Sakai, N. Sogabe, M. Tsujimoto, Y. Matsumoto and S. Nakatsuji, Unveiling quadrupolar Kondo effect in the heavy fermion superconductor PrV<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>20</sub>, J. Phys. Soc. Jpn. 89, 013704 (2020), doi:10.7566/JPSJ.89.013704.
- [57] T. Onimaru, N. Nagasawa, K. T. Matsumoto, K. Wakiya, K. Umeo, S. Kittaka, T. Sakakibara, Y. Matsushita and T. Takabatake, *Simultaneous superconducting and antiferroquadrupolar transitions in PrRh<sub>2</sub>Zn<sub>20</sub>*, Phys. Rev. B 86, 184426 (2012), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.86.184426.
- [58] M. Tsujimoto, Y. Matsumoto, T. Tomita, A. Sakai and S. Nakatsuji, *Heavy-fermion super-conductivity in the quadrupole ordered state of PrV<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>20</sub>*, Phys. Rev. Lett. **113**, 267001 (2014), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.113.267001.

- [59] K. T. Matsumoto, T. Onimaru, K. Wakiya, K. Umeo and T. Takabatake, *Effect of La substitution in PrIr<sub>2</sub>Zn<sub>20</sub> on the superconductivity and antiferro-quadrupole order*, J. Phys. Soc. Jpn. 84, 063703 (2015), doi:10.7566/JPSJ.84.063703.
- [60] A. Sakai, K. Kuga and S. Nakatsuji, Superconductivity in the ferroquadrupolar state in the quadrupolar Kondo lattice PrTi<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>20</sub>, J. Phys. Soc. Jpn. 81, 083702 (2012), doi:10.1143/JPSJ.81.083702.
- [61] T. Onimaru et al., Superconductivity and structural phase transitions in caged compounds  $RT_2Zn_{20}$  (R = La, Pr, T = Ru, Ir), J. Phys. Soc. Jpn. **79**, 033704 (2010), doi:10.1143/JPSJ.79.033704.
- [62] Y. Shimura, M. Tsujimoto, B. Zeng, L. Balicas, A. Sakai and S. Nakatsuji, *Field-induced quadrupolar quantum criticality in PrV<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>20</sub>*, Phys. Rev. B **91**, 241102 (2015), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.91.241102.
- [63] T. Onimaru et al., Quadrupole-driven non-Fermi-liquid and magnetic-field-induced heavy fermion states in a non-Kramers doublet system, Phys. Rev. B 94, 075134 (2016), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.94.075134.
- [64] K. Matsubayashi, T. Tanaka, A. Sakai, S. Nakatsuji, Y. Kubo and Y. Uwatoko, *Pressure-induced heavy fermion superconductivity in the nonmagnetic quadrupolar system PrTi<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>20</sub>*, Phys. Rev. Lett. **109**, 187004 (2012), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.109.187004.
- [65] A. S. Patri, A. Sakai, S. Lee, A. Paramekanti, S. Nakatsuji and Y. B. Kim, Unveiling hidden multipolar orders with magnetostriction, Nature Commun. 10, 4092 (2019), doi:10.1038/s41467-019-11913-3.
- [66] S. Nagashima, T. Nishiwaki, A. Otani, M. Sakoda, E. Matsuoka, H. Harima and H. Sugawara, *De Haas - Van Alphen effect in RTi<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>20</sub> (R = La, Pr, and Sm)*, JPS Conf. Proc. 3, 011019 (2014), doi:10.7566/JPSCP3.011019.
- [67] T. Kubo, E. Matsuoka, H. Kotegawa, H. Tou, A. Nakamura, D. Aoki, H. Harima and H. Sugawara, *Fermi surface of the heavy-fermion superconductor PrTi<sub>2</sub>Al<sub>20</sub>*, J. Phys. Soc. Jpn. 89, 084704 (2020), doi:10.7566/JPSJ.89.084704.
- [68] J. Polchinski, Effective field theory and the Fermi surface, arXiv:hep-th/9210046.
- [69] C. Fang, B. A. Bernevig and M. J. Gilbert, *Tri-Dirac surface modes in topological supercon*ductors, Phys. Rev. B 91, 165421 (2015), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.91.165421.
- [70] J. W. F. Venderbos, L. Savary, J. Ruhman, P. A. Lee and L. Fu, Pairing states of spin-<sup>3</sup>/<sub>2</sub> fermions: Symmetry-enforced topological gap functions, Phys. Rev. X 8, 011029 (2018), doi:10.1103/PhysRevX.8.011029.
- [71] L. Savary, J. Ruhman, J. W. F. Venderbos, L. Fu and P. A. Lee, Superconductivity in three-dimensional spin-orbit coupled semimetals, Phys. Rev. B 96, 214514 (2017), doi:10.1103/PhysRevB.96.214514.
- [72] P. M. R. Brydon, L. Wang, M. Weinert and D. F. Agterberg, *Pairing of* j = 3/2 *fermions in half-Heusler superconductors*, Phys. Rev. Lett. **116**, 177001 (2016), doi:10.1103/PhysRevLett.116.177001.
- [73] M. Tinkham, *Group theory and quantum mechanics*, Dover Publications, Mineola, ISBN 9780486432472 (1992).

- [74] P. Coleman, *Introduction to many-body physics*, Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, UK, ISBN 9781139020916 (2015), doi:10.1017/CBO9781139020916.
- [75] A. Sakai, Y. Matsumoto, M. Fu, M. Tsujimoto, E. T. C. O'Farrell and S. Nakatsuji, *Unpublished preprint manuscript* (2021).